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The NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union is committed to the
promotion of thrift among its members,
the provision of sound financial advice
and assistance offered through a wide
range of financial services, delivered by
a highly efficient and motivated staff;
committed to excellence.

Mission Statement

Our True Purpose

The NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Crédit Union is in the

business to help every medical professional to reuliz_q trheir
dreams, by offering trusted advice and better value on the
financial services that are available to them.

Trusted Advice means that we will never offer a product or service that
does not put the needs of you, our members FIRST. We ask you
about your long-term goals and take pride in helping you to make
smart decisions that meet your unique situation. Unlike most

financial institutions, we do not have the conflict of trying to serve
the competing needs of customers and investors. You, our members
are our owners. When we help you, we are meeting your ObiECﬁVGS
as owners.

Help People Get More means improve
your finances. We choose to operate
as a non-profit organization, so we
can share our earning with you, our
owners, instead of outside investors
by offering competititve rates, low
fees, online services, high capital
reserves and more.

Better Value means that although we may not always offer the
lowest cost, we consistently offer a combination of competitive

pricing, personul service and convenience. We are transparent in our
terms and do not engage in teaser rates or highly restrictive
conditions.

Adapted from Delta Community Credit Union



The 45th
Annual General Meeting

NAJ & HEALTH SERVICES
CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION LIMITED

“Helping you to realize your dreams”

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2021 ANNUAL REPORT




CONTENTS

VISION STATEMENT ... 3
MISSION STATEMENT ... 3
NOTICE OF MEETING. ..ot 4
AGENDA. ..ottt iiiiiieiieseneeneiotioneneencssssssss. ST, . SN 4
MINUTES OF THE 44TH AGM ....ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicnieit et e e s g
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT............... JSSESCAS S 500, . . 20
PUBLIC RELATIONS - CREDIT UNION WEEK 2021 ......cccc.covienieneen 26

THOSE WHO SERVE US ........... S S S S, . .. ..... 27

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Letter from the Department of Co-operatives ............ccevvveeennnnnn.. 31
AUditor’s Letter.....ooeiiie i e 33
Statement of Income Position ................coiiiiiiiiiii i 37
Statement of Comprehensive Income ................ccooiiiiiiiiiiin., 39
Statement of Changes in Equity..............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii . 40
Statement of Cash FIow.............oooiiiiii e 41
Notes to the Financial Statement .....................oooiiiiiiiii ... 42

TREASURER’S REPORT .....cooiiiiiiiiiiiieceienecneen e e e 18

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Credit COMMILEEE .....ouvvetintt ettt etees e e e eveesiee e e e eneeeens 13
Supervisory COmmIttee ..........ovvviiiiiiiiiieeiieeerieeeeieeesseeessieeesineeeen 10
Nominating COMMITIEE ....cc.eeveeenvinnineineeneeniiienieieeieeieeieeieeiee e oo 84

PICTORIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF 2021 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING....... 87

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE JCCUL 80TH AGM......cccceooiiiiiiinienieniciieeeeee e 89
PRAYER OF ST. FRANCIS OF ASSISSI ....oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieccceceece e 94
NATIONAL ANTHEM ....oooiiiiiiiiiiiceee e 95
NOTES e 96

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

2021 ANNUAL REPORT




MISSION & VISION

STATEMENTS

C 0

l\ MISSION STATEMENT

The NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union is committed to the promotion of
thrift among its members,

the provision of sound financial advice and
assistance offered through a wide range of
financial services, delivered by a highly efficient
and motivated staff; committed to excellence.

B\ VISION STATEMENT

To provide a solid financial foundation
and a secured future,

by improving the lives of members
within the health sector,

through quality products and services
to build a better shareholder value.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
ﬁ Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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NOTICE OF

MEETING

N:

o O

tice is hereby given that the 45th Annual General Meeting of NAJ & Health Serv-

ices Co-operative Credit Union Limited will be held as a Hybrid Meeting on Saturday,

July 9, 2022, at the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League, 2a Manhattan Road,
Kingston 5, commencing at 9:30 a.m., to transact the ordinary business of the Society.

Yours truly,

A~

i3oreen Cushnie (Ms.)
Board Secretary

OISR N

10.
I1.
12.
13.
14.

Ascertainment of Quorum
Call to Order

Notice Convening AGM
Prayer

Obituaries

Welcome

Apologies for Absence
Greetings
Reports Boards of Directors

- Credit Committee

- Supervisory Committee
- Treasurer and Auditor

Fixing of Maximum Liability

Nominating Committee’s Report and Election of Officer
Nomination to the League’s Annual General Meeting
Any Other Business

Adjournment

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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MINUTES

Minutes of the 44th Annual General Meeting
of the NAJ & Health Serices Co-operative Credit Union Limited
held on Saturday, June 26, 2021

he 45th Annual General Meeting of the

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Union Limited was called to order at
9:40 a.m. by Mrs. Janett Coore-Farr, President
of the Credit Union, and Chairperson for the
45th AGM. Miss Doreen Cushnie, the Secre-
tary, confirmed that a quorum was present.

Mr. Barrington Hibbert was invited to pray
which was followed by the recital of the
Prayer of Saint Francis of Assisi.

CORRECTIONS

To make corrections from the Errata Sheet,
the Standing Orders were suspended on a
motion moved by Mrs. Mureen Young-Sewell
and seconded by Miss Shirley Hibbert. The
Secretary was asked to read the corrections
and make amendments to the 2019 Reports.
This was done.

On page 4 under Notice of Meeting, amend
the Notice to remove 45th AGM and insert the
words ‘as a hybrid meeting’ after the word
‘held’ and insert a comma. Then ‘2021 fol-
lowed by June 26. Also, on page 4 under
Agenda, remove ‘Item 11 Resolution’ and
insert it after Item 2.

Continuing page 4 amend the words, ‘to allow
for electronic meetings, attendance, participa-
tion, and voting.” Still on page 4, still on the
agenda, insert after [tem 8, ‘Greetings,” insert

‘Reading and Confirmation of Minutes of
43rd Annual General Meeting.” On page 5,
‘Board of Directors Report,’ delete the brack-
ets from 2.51 under 2019 and delete the figure
106.40 the in bracket under ‘percentage
growth’ and insert 3.89.

Page 67, under 'Proposal for Fixing of Maxi-
mum Liability' in the first line change 2019 to
2020.

Page 68, under 'Nominating Committee
Report for the Board Directors' where there is
Doreen Cushnie, changes one year to two
years. Under Supervisory Committee on page
69 remove the name Michelle Clarke and
replace it with Mrs. Mendis Dennis-Vincent.

Page 75 under 'Special Resolution,’ delete the
first paragraph.

The Resolution amending the rules to allow
for electronic meetings was read to the meet-
ing by the Secretary. After the reading of the
Resolution, the session was moderated by
Mrs. Sheryl Brown from the Department of
Co-operatives and Friendly Societies. She
enquired from the members if they had any
questions or comments regarding the Resolu-
tion, they could state them. Iona White-
Lawson stated that as a preamble to the Res-
olution it should be stated that it was because
of the Covid 19 Pandemic that the meeting

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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MINUTES

had to be held with some members virtually
so that persons not at the meeting will know
why there is this Resolution. Mrs. Sheryl
Brown explained that in relation to the
amendments to the rules, Co-operative Soci-
eties were not allowed to have hybrid meet-
ings before. She further stated that the
regulations were passed on January 2021 to
allow credit unions and other Co-operatives
to hold their meetings virtually and hybrid but
before that can be done, credit unions need to
amend their rules to include having virtual
and hybrid meetings. She further stated that it
was not necessary to say that it is because of
the pandemic.

There were no further questions or comments,
Mrs. Brown asked that a motion be moved
and seconded for the acceptance of the Reso-
lution. The motion for the acceptance of
the Resolution was moved by Mrs. Patsy
Edwards-Henry and seconded by Mr. Egon
Fagon.

The next item was the passing of the Resolu-
tion which was done by poll for the online
members and by raising of hands by members
present in the room. She advised members
that for the Resolution to be passed, ninety-
five percent of the members present had to
vote for the Resolution. It was confirmed that
there were 140 members present both virtu-
ally and present in the room. The Resolution
was passed with One hundred and twenty-six
voted virtually and fourteen members in the
conference room making it a total of 140 who

o O

voted for the Resolution. Three persons virtu-
ally voted against it. No person in the room
voted against and four persons who attended
virtually abstained. No in-house person
abstained. The Resolution was passed suc-
cessfully.

The Chairperson thanked Mrs. Sheryl Brown
for so ably conducting the voting process.

The resumption of the Standing Orders was
moved on a motion by Mr. Ashani Thomas
and seconded by Mr. Derrick Tulloch. The
motion was carried.

THE MEETING CALL TO ORDER

The Secretary read the Notice convening the
44th Annual General Meeting of NAJ &
Health Services Co-operative Credit Union
Limited.

OBITUARIES
One minute of silence was observed for mem-
bers who had passed since the last AGM.

WELCOME

The President welcomed all persons physi-
cally present and those online. She stated that
she was particularly pleased and congratu-
lated people for being punctual. She said that
it is her pleasure to have them all there, both
online and in-house. Continuing she stated
that it has been an interesting year, thanks to
Covid but it has taught us many things such
as, ‘we can do all things through Christ.” At
this juncture, she asked for apologies for
absence.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There was no apology for absence.

Members celebrating birthdays in May and
June were asked to show their hands and the
song ‘Happy Birthday’ was sung in celebra-
tion.

The Chairperson introduced the Board of
Directors, Committees, Management, and
staff to the members of the AGM. She
thanked them for working hard for the past
year. Those introduced for the Board of
Directors were Janett Coore-Farr, President,
Dr. Robert Hibbert, Vice President, Mr. Der-
rick Tulloch, Treasurer, Charmaine O'Reilly,
Assistant Treasurer, Doreen Cushnie, Secre-
tary, Dr. Hillary Jones, Assistant Secretary,
Dr. Audrie McNab, Director, Claudia Wallen,
Director. The President thanked them for their
service.

Members of the Credit Committee introduced
were Constance Roberts Perkins, Novelette
Arthurs, Camille Williams, Dion Murphy
Nedrick, and Mureen Young-Sewell.

Members of the Supervisory Committee
introduced were Barrington Hibbert, Beretta
Thomas, and Serica Brandon Betty.

She extended a special welcome to the Nurses
Association of Jamaica, Department of
Co-operatives, the Credit Union League,
Bogle and Company, CUNA Caribbean, the
Recording Secretary, the Photographer, and
the technical team. She thanked them for

MINUTES

being a very valuable part of the Credit
Union.

She informed the meeting that there would be
Greetings from The Jamaica Cooperative
Credit Union League, CUNA Caribbean, and
Nurses Association of Jamaica.

SPECIAL WELCOME TO INVITED
GUESTS

She welcomed Mr. Thomas Wint from Bogle
and Company, Mr. Errol Gallimore, Registrar,
Ms. Tanisha Facey, Director of Inspectorate,
and Mrs. Sheryl Brown Acting Regional
Manager from DCFS, Mr. Robin Levy,
League Group CEO, Mrs. Georgia Morrison
Assistant VP Sales, CUNA Caribbean,
Mrs. Patsy Edwards-Henry, President of NAJ,
Ms. Melaine Campbell Member Service
Officer, League, Videographers, Ms. Yvonne
Bernard, recording secretary, Mr. Phillip
Bulli, photographer, Ms. Tanesha Facey,
Mrs. Cheryll Brown, Ms. Tresann Thompson,
and Ms. Nicola Scott, Auditors from DCEFS.

Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union League
Miss Vera Lindo brought greetings from the
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League.
She greeted members in-house and online. On
behalf of the Jamaica Cooperative Credit
Union League and the Credit Union Move-
ment as a whole, she thanked the nurses and
medical fraternity for their commitment, per-
severance, and sacrifice during 2020 and even
now during the pandemic. She also congratu-
lated the Credit Union for being there for the
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members so that they could be there for us as
a country. She said that she knew it was a dif-
ficult year in terms of some members who had
challenges paying their loans, but she assured
the members that they will rise again in 2021.
She encouraged the Credit Union to continue
to work hard for the members. She advised
that the credit union is a valued part of the
Movement. She wished them a successful
AGM.

CUNA CARIBBEAN JAMAICA
LIMITED

Miss Georgia Morrison, Assistant Vice Pres-
ident for sales brought greetings on behalf of
CUNA Caribbean Jamaica Limited. She said
that it was her distinct pleasure and honour to
be at the AGM. She used the opportunity to
congratulate the members and the Credit
Union on all the years of service to the health
sector. She stated that NAJ and Health Serv-
ices was a very special Credit Union. It has
been a very challenging time for the health
sector in terms of the Covid 19 Pandemic. She
said that she knew that the health sector work-
ers are very appreciative of the services and
products being offered by the NAJ & Health
Services Credit Union.

Mrs. Morrison stated that at CUNA Caribbean
it has been their pleasure to provide insurance
solutions to this august body. She also stated
that she knows that several Credit Union’s
members have benefited from CUNA’S prod-
uct offerings, especially the Family Indemnity
Plan. She wants to continue to work with the

o O

Credit Union and provide solutions to the
members and she looks forward to growing
and keeping their relationship. She thanked
the Credit Union for having her at the AGM
and wish them a successful AGM. On behalf
of CUNA Mutual, she wished the Credit
Union God’s richest blessing for the year and
the years to come.

NURSES ASSOCIATION OF JAMAICA
Mrs. Patsy Edwards Henry, President of the
Nurses Association of Jamaica, brought greet-
ings on behalf of the Association. She said
that today is a momentous day in the history
of the Credit Union because it is the first time
that they were meeting online and were not
sitting together. She stated that it is usually a
time that they share hugs, meet and greet, and
network with those they have not seen for a
long time. She stated that she was seeing a lot
of persons from overseas online, so it is mo-
mentous for them to be here today.

The year she said has been a challenging one,
and she did not need to explain because as
healthcare workers in the different areas of
healthcare they have undergone the stress and
the challenges of the pandemic, but they have
also had some victories.

She congratulated the Credit Union on stand-
ing firm and standing out and keeping the
monies of the members safe. She said that she
knew that they have developed strategies to
stay afloat and keep members satisfied. She
has looked in the history book and realized

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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that as of November last year there are only
twenty-five credit unions remaining in
Jamaica. Over the last ten years, they have
had the challenges with mergers and the clos-
ing of some credit unions, but NAJ & Health
Services stood strong and as they widened
their bond, they were still and are still an
independent entity. She asked members in the
room and online to give a round of applause.

She congratulated the staff and the Board of
Directors for their innovative and creative
strategies. Mrs. Edwards-Henry stated that the
pandemic forced the Credit Union to postpone
the meeting last year but thankfully the new
norm has given us this opportunity. She
wished for the Credit Union a productive and
successful AGM.

MINUTES OF THE 43RD AGM

The Secretary, Miss Doreen Cushnie pre-
sented the Minutes which were found on
pages 6 to 13 in the booklet. She said that the
meeting was adjourned because there was no
quorum and so today, they had to go back to
the Minutes of the 43rd AGM. She asked for
a motion for the Minutes to be taken as read.
This was done by Miss Shirley Hibbert and
seconded by Mrs. Nadine Anderson
Lawrence.

CORRECTION OF MINUTES OF THE
43RD AGM

On page 6 under the heading ‘Birthdays,’ it
should be happy birthday was sung to them.
On page 9, the line that says page 10 is still

§¢

MINUTES

incorrect. It should be Miss Novlette Arthurs.
Under Credit Committee, page 12, second
paragraph, Miss Novelette Robinson,
Novlette with two ‘Is’.

She then asked for the Minutes to be con-
firmed. The Minutes were confirmed by
Mrs. Mureen Young-Sewell and seconded by
Constance Roberts Perkins.

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE
MINUTES

There was no matter arising from the Minutes
for 2019.

At this juncture, the meeting was handed back
to the President, Mrs. Coore-Farr.

2019 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REPORTS

It was suggested and agreed that the Board of
Directors Reports for 2019 and 2020 be taken
together. Both reports were taken as read on
a motion moved by Miss Doreen Cushnie and
seconded by Mr. Derrick Tulloch. Mrs. Coore
Farr went through the 2019 report quickly as
it is an overview for 2020 and it was on the
screen.

She stated that during the period 2019 there
were some challenges, but the Board of
Directors and Management worked extremely
hard to maintain the Credit Union. There was
a strategic focus that was maintained to make
certain the Credit Union provided relevant
goods and services for the members' benefit.
All was achieved through careful financial
navigation and proactive action. She said, the
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Credit Union continued to show growth in
key performance areas and some of those per-
formance areas looked at members’ shares
where the growth was at 6.4%, Permanent
Shares at 50%, Members’ Deposit at 6.9%,
Loan Provision was 16.67%, and Total Assets
4.58%. Institutional Capital remained zero
between 2018 and 2019 and the surplus was
minus $96.58M. There was some member-
ship growth between 2019 and 2020. In 2019
there were 189 and in 2020 there were 153
which was an increase in 36 new members
bringing the portfolio to 4,894 compared with
4,723 in 2018. The increase in membership
was due to the dedicated staff.

The Credit Union continues to provide excep-
tional services to our valuable members. Of
note, they did not have to visit the Credit
Union when they needed to withdraw funds
as this could be done online as online banking
services were provided. Insurance was
provided through the Credit Union by Sagicor
Insurance Company. Members continued to
pay their insurance premiums, mortgages, and
other payments through standing order agree-
ments which worked well for 2019. The
Credit Union also continues to partner with
other organizations to ensure that the Credit
Union has the right savings plan, death bene-
fits, and critical illness plans as follows:
CUNA Caribbean Family Indemnity Plan,
FIP Critical Illness Plan, and the Golden Har-
vest Savings Plan. The Credit Union ensures
that members’ savings and loans are protected
by CUNA Caribbean Life Savings and Life

Protection Plan accordingly, as well as the
Jamaica Co-operative Insurance Agency
Group and Creditors Life Insurance policies.

THE 2020 BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REPORT

The President, Mrs. Coore Farr said she was
very pleased to announce that the Credit
Union is now celebrating its 44th year. The
Board, Management, staff, and volunteers
continue to celebrate the hard-working pro-
fessionals, and this is when they saw the
health care workers at their best and they cer-
tainly realized that without them this could
not have been possible. She said the members’
utilized products and services available to
them.

Mrs. Coore Farr said that during the Covid-
19 Pandemic the Credit Union remained
open. Persons who are in health care were
very happy about this because they had some-
where to transact their business. In 2020,
many people found it particularly challenging
as there were massive job losses in the public
sector in general, but the health sector did not
have any job losses. She indicated that the
Health Sector was short-staffed, however, for-
tunately, the health sector remains a priority
in Jamaica so medical professionals were able
to keep working and continue to seek finan-
cial assistance from the Credit Union.

GROWTH PERFORMANCE

Mrs. Coore Farr said the growth in the Credit
Union depicts a resemblance to the financial
climate which had been impacted severely by
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the effect of the Covid-19 Pandemic both
locally and globally. Despite the odds, the
Credit Union still shows signs of growth in
key areas. However, it will take some time to
realize a more sustained growth given the dif-
ferent variables encountered from time to
time.

MEMBERSHIP GROWTH

One hundred and sixty-nine new members
were accepted into membership, and this was
a decrease of twenty members compared to
2019 which had 189. The total membership
stands at 5062 compared with 4,894 in 2019.
Efforts continue to entice all medical profes-
sionals across the island to understand that the
credit union was designed to suit their every
need.

FUTURE LEADERS

Mrs. Coore-Farr lauded those persons who
encouraged children to put money in the
Credit Union and advised that they need to
start from now. The number of Future Lead-
ers’ accounts open in the year under review
were nineteen compared to the previous year
which was twenty-one. She stated that now
that the children are almost out of school this
1s the time to encourage them to save, and the
Credit Union is grateful that their parents saw
it fit for them to save with the Credit Union.

KEY OPERATING PERFORMANCE

Members Shares went up by 5.87% to
$334.44 for 2019 and $354.08M in 2020.
Permanent Shares went up by 2.70%. Mem-

MINUTES

bers’ Deposits went up by 22.51%, Loans by
11.67%, and Total Assets by 9.24%. Institu-
tional Capital remained flat at 0.03% and the
Surplus/Deficit was 3.89%.

OBITUARIES

Condolences were extended to all members
and their families who lost loved ones during
the years under review.

SERVICE DELIVERY

The President mentioned the Board of Direc-
tors recognized that during the pandemic
period members were finding it hard to sus-
tain their families and themselves so interest
rates on loans were reduced to facilitate them
and special loans were offered.

MEETING ATTENDANCE

The President advised that four Board Meet-
ings were not held during the Covid-19 Pan-
demic, nevertheless, Board members attended
the meetings that were held.

LEAGUE AGM

The Credit Union League's Annual General
Meeting was held as a hybrid meeting on Sat-
urday, October 3, 2020, with a limited number
of persons at the Knutsford Court Hotel and
most of its members were online. Those who
attended the meeting from the Credit Union
were Janet Coore-Farr who was at the
Knutsford Court Hotel while Mr. Derrick
Tulloch and Dr. Desreen Marquis were on
Zoom.
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Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

2021 ANNUAL REPORT




MINUTES

OUTREACH PROGRAMME

The Credit Union still managed to do out-
reach programmes although had to tighten its
spending during the pandemic period. The
President said the Board of Directors believes
in its social corporate responsibility. She
named the institutions and the individuals that
were assisted.

THE WAY FORWARD

The overall strategic direction of the Credit
Union is growth by market penetration as the
bond caters to all health professionals includ-
ing the clerical and non-clerical workers and
all family members. She is hoping that for the
year coming, the Credit Union will be moving
in that direction. The President also said that
the focus will be on members’ needs which
include, affordability of loan products and
creative savings. She stated that the Board is
committed to ensuring that the strategic ini-
tiatives of the Credit Union remain viable in
this unpredictable environment with emphasis
on stronger capital adequacy and the pending
Bank of Jamaica’s Credit Union Regulations.

APPRECIATION

Mrs. Coore Farr expressed that despite the
difficulties we faced in 2020 during Covid-19
and all the challenges it has brought to us, the
dedicated staff of the Credit Union was deter-
mined to make it successful. They brought
out, resilience, hard work, and dedication. She
said that we must always re-evaluate and look
at ways for improvements. Turning to the
Management of the Credit Union she said that

o O

Dr. Marquis has always been motivating her
staff and making sure there is no mediocrity
despite what is happening. She believes in
always striving for excellence.

She thanked the Board Members who can
always be called upon to assist and for their
dedicated service. Thanks to the staff who
worked beyond the call of duty, the Credit
Union League, and all the other credit unions
who supported the facility. She thanked Miss
Vera Lindo who has always been offering her
service to the Credit Union.

At this juncture, she introduced the staft of the
Credit Union.

The adoption of the Board of Directors’
Report was moved by Mr. Barrington Hibbert
and seconded by Mrs. Dion Murphy-Nedrick.
The motion was unanimously carried.

CREDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Miss Constance Roberts-Perkins presented
the Credit Committee Report for the year
ended December 31, 2020 and highlighted
some of the figures for 2019. She said that
the year under review will forever be edged
in the history books as this year the world
adopted a new way of functioning. The Credit
Committee will also adapt to the new opera-
tions. She informed that for two and a half
months the Committee did not meet due to the
closedown and restrictions that were imposed
by the Government of Jamaica containing the
spread of the Covid-19 virus.
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The Credit Committee, nevertheless, contin-
ues to carry out the mandate of the Credit
Union and by extension ensures that all mem-
bers realize their dreams.

She said that it was a privilege to be entrusted
with the important tasks of assisting and
approving members’ loans. Although it was
a challenging year the members remain res-
olute and committed to the task entrusted to
them.

Mrs. Roberts-Perkins stated that the Commit-
tee meets on Wednesdays and reviews loans
for approvals. The Committee also attended
quarterly joint Board Meetings which also
included the Supervisory Committee. At this
point, she introduces the members of the
Credit Committee. She stated that the respon-
sibility of the Committee members during the
meetings was to ensure:
¢.  Compliance with the credit union loan
policy and procedures,
¢ Documents are accurately and appro-
priately completed,
Risks minimized,
Appropriate securities are maintained
for each loan application

LOANS DISBURSED IN 2019 AND 2020

For 2020, 407 loans were disbursed during
the period January to December at a total
value of $210.49M. In 2019, 446 loans were
disbursed with a total value of $109.67M.
Therefore in 2020, there was a decrease in the
number of loans disbursed by 39. However,

MINUTES

there was an increase in the dollar value of
these loans by $100.82M. The Personal
Loans and the Motor Vehicle Loans were
compared for the two years. Three hundred
and sixty-nine Personal Loans were approved
for 2019 which amounted to $61.5M. In 2020
the number was reduced to 303 loans, but the
dollar value was increased to $43.3M. There
were only 19 Motor Vehicle loans with a total
dollar value of $21.3M in 2019. In 2020 the
number of Motor Vehicle Loans was 57 with
a total dollar value of $114.6M.

APPRECIATION

The Credit Committee extend appreciation to
the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Com-
mittee, and the Management and staft for their
guidance and continued support which
enabled them to accomplish their tasks in an
efficient manner. She also thanked the mem-
bers of the Credit Union for their understand-
ing and cooperation. She thanked the
members for electing the Credit Committee
members to serve and said it was a pleasure
working with them.

There were no questions or comments on the
Credit Committee Report. A motion was
moved by Mr. Egan Fagon and seconded by
Gillian Mason-Quarrie for the adoption of the
Credit Committee Report.

The President informed the meeting that in
attendance from the Jamaica Co-operative
Credit Union League were Mrs. Kleo Errar
and Miss Katrina Grant-D’Agular as well as
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Mrs. Pearly Esteem Murray, and Mrs. Fay
Smart from England. Mrs. Grace-Smart-
Simms past Board President had also joined
the meeting. Mrs. Pearly Esteem Grant
greeted Management and members.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Mr. Barrington Hibbert, Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee presented the report.
He greeted the members including those in
the diaspora. He first gave a synopsis of
2019. He named the persons of the Supervi-
sory Committee who were elected to serve for
2019. He also outlined the duties that the
Supervisory Committee performed during
2019 which included reviewing and assessing
the internal control of the Credit Union and
making recommendations where necessary to
minimize operational risks. He said that meet-
ings were held monthly to facilitate these ac-
tivities. Several areas were examined such as
areas of the Credit Union operations including
business processes, bank accounts, bank rec-
onciliation, segregation of duties, and several
other areas.

The Supervisory Committee’s findings were
that the operations of the Credit Union were
compliant with established policies and pro-
cedures and the Supervisory Committee con-
cluded that during 2019 the Credit Union
realized a surplus of $2.6M and this was com-
pared to $12.25M surplus in 2018. He said
that based on the 2019 audit carried out by
Bogle and Company they concluded that
financial challenges were experienced during

o O

the year, and they were expecting even more
challenges during 2020 and beyond, and be-
cause of the Covid-19 pandemic, the profit for
2019 was only $2.6M.

2020 SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
REPORT

For the year 2020, he said that the Supervi-
sory Committee operated with three members
due to the resignation of two of its five mem-
bers. The three members are Miss Beretta
Thomas, Mrs. Serica Brandon-Betty, Secre-
tary, and Mr. Barrington Hibbert as Chairman.

Mr. Hibbert said that the Committee contin-
ued to review and assess the internal controls
of the Credit Union and make recommenda-
tions where necessary to minimize opera-
tional risks. In addition to regular meetings,
the members of the Committee also attended
Joint Board and Committee Meetings which
were held quarterly.

He outlined areas of the Credit Union’s oper-
ations and business processes examined by
the Supervisory Committee which included
Source Documentation, Bank Reconciliation,
Property Tax Payments, Staff Attendance,
Petty Cash verification, Utility Payments,
Surprise Cash Count, Property Insurance, and
reviews of Internal Audit Reports.

He stated that the Credit Union contracted
Smith & Associates to conduct quarterly
internal audits. Reports from these audits
were perused and analyzed by the Supervi-
sory Committee with special note of the
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Auditors’ recommendations. He said that as a
follow-up, discussions were held with the
Management of the Credit Union regarding
the findings and recommendations. The find-
ings of the Supervisory Committee were that
the operations of the Credit Union were com-
pliant with established policies and proce-
dures.

The Credit Union recorded a deficit of
$9,178,278 compared with a surplus of
$2,510,303 in 2019. The deficit of $9,178,278
was due largely to the financial challenges
experienced during the year relating to Covid-
19 and measures to control the spread of the
disease. He said that with the assistance of
the Supervisory Committee the Credit Union
will continue its observance of good fiscal
discipline and adherence to the established
policies and procedures to facilitate improved
performance in 2021.

He said members of the Supervisory Commit-
tee expressed their gratitude for the opportu-
nity to serve the Credit Union. He extended
thanks to the Board of Directors for their con-
tinued support, the Management, and staff for
their level of operation and commitment, and
the membership of the Credit Union for trust-
ing them with this tremendous responsibility.

There being no questions or comments a
motion was moved for the adoption of the
Supervisory Report. The motion was moved
by Mrs. Michelle Hales-Thompson and sec-
onded by Mrs. Nadine Francis-Smith.

MINUTES

THE TREASURER’S AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT

After greeting the Management, staff, and
members of the Credit Union Mr. Derrick
Tulloch, Treasurer, asked the Auditor,
Mr. Thomas Wint, to present the Auditors
Report for 2020 because it encompasses
everything.

THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Mr. Wint greeted the President, Management,
and members. He informed the meeting that
the Auditor's Report was presented from
pages 16 to 19 of the Annual Report which he
read. He stated that he had obtained all the
information and explanation, and, in his opin-
ion, proper accounting records have been
maintained as appeared from the examination
of those records and the financial statements
which agree therein given the information
required by the Co-operative Societies Act in
the manner required.

THE TREASURER'S REPORT

Mr. Tulloch said that the Treasurer's Report
can be found on pages 63 to 67 of the Annual
Report. Mr. Tulloch outlined the economic
impact of Covid-19 on the Jamaican econ-
omy. He made special mention of the mem-
bers who have been the vanguard on the front
line fighting the virus and keeping the nation
safe.

Turning to the Jamaican economic experi-
enced, he said there was a reduction in GDP
0f 10.2% and the downturn in the global spin
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as we continue to see the impact that this
world is now facing with vaccines. The shock
brought on by the Covet-19 Pandemic
resulted in lower employment levels as well
as lower business investments and therefore
today we see the Government of Jamaica
opening the economy safely.

THE CREDIT UNION MOVEMENT

Mr. Tulloch then informed the meeting of the
financial position of the Credit Union Move-
ment. He said the Total Assets of the 25 Credit
Unions which are members of the Credit
Union Movement moved from $123.97B at
the end 0f 2019 to $136.97B in 2020, making
it a 10.49% increase. Loans only grew by
3.57% moving from $88.44B to $91.60B, a
3.57% growth. Savings did a lot better he
said. It moved from $96.31B to $105.80B or
a 9.95% increase. Membership in the Move-
ment showed some increase moving from
1,006,557 to 1,034,962 a growth of 2.82%.

NAJ & HEALTH SERVICES
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Mr. Tulloch stated that in 2020 one of the
challenges that the Credit Union faced over
the period was a loan impairment of $7M
which significantly impacted the performance
of the Credit Union. In 2019 Interest Income
was $54.52M, and in 2020 it was $56.31M so
it is virtually stable, a $1.7M difference.
Interest Expenses plus bad debts totaled
$10.71M, compared with $9.26M in 2019 a
change of $1.45M. Interest Income remains

relatively stable at $45.26M in 2019 and
$45.60M in 2020. This is an area in which
they expected growth. What they found is that
the rates that are being paid on the invest-
ments that they have in the financial sector
had dropped significantly. There were no Bad
Debts Recovered in 2020. In 2019 they had
$2.67M and the provision that they had to
make for write-off was $7M. In 2021 the
Credit Union had engaged new legal services
and efforts have been made since the start of
2021 to make inroads in collecting on these
loans. Most of these loans were secured by
assets, for example, real estate and they have
moved to realize those assets. Interest Income
after Allowance for Loan Loss in 2019 was
$47.93M and in 2020 $38.60M. Other Income
went down because of the prevailing eco-
nomic conditions. In 2019 it was $12.99M
and in 2020 it was $8.52M. Gross Income
was $41.12M; Operating Expense was
$56.29M as against $56.3M. In 2020 although
the expenses remain relatively stable at $56M
Income dropped from $58.64M to $47.12M
resulting in a deficit in 2020 of $9.17M as
against $2.61M in 2019. Interest Income
increased marginally from $56.31M in 2020
compared to $54.52M in 2019 reflecting a
growth of 3.29%. The Operating Expenses
remain relatively stable. The Balance Sheet
reflected some positive changes, for example,
Total Loans reflected an increase of $54.04M
or 11.66% growth. Loan Balance increased
from $463.17M in 2019 to $517.21M in 2020.
Total Assets stood at $777.41M at the end of
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2020. At the end of 2019, it was $711.64M
reflecting an increase of $65.77M. Members
Share Capital in December stood at
$354.08M compared to $334.44M, reflecting
an increase of $19.64M or 5.87% growth.
Members ‘Loans increased from $463.17M in
2019 to $517.21M in 2020, an increase of
$54.04M.

Members’ Deposits moved from $248.47M in
2019 to $304.39M in 2020, a growth of
$55.92M. The Credit Union offers the best
rates available in the market. He said that
banks are offering 1% interest whilst the
Credit Union is offing over 4%, so the Credit
Union is the best place to deposit funds.
Financial investments went down from
$166.22M to $157.03M. Equity moved from
$98.20M to $90.25M. Institutional Capital
moved from $67.94M in 2019 to $67.96M in
2020. For Institutional Capital the goal is 8%.

Some key indicators were looked at such as
Solvency. For Solvency, the goal is 111%. As
of December 2020 the Credit Union was at
113.75. For Net loans to Total Assets, the goal
was 60 to 80% and we were at 66.01%. Sav-
ings Deposit to Total Asset standard is 70 to
80% NAJ and Health Services was at 84.65%,
and for Membership, the goal is 5%, we only
achieved 3.43%.

In relation to Delinquency, he said that they
were still having problems getting the funds
from the Ministry of Health Regional Bodies
on a timely basis and it is impacting on the

——
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Credit Union delinquency portfolio. He said
that representations have been made to the
Ministry of Health on the matter and as soon
as the Credit Union starts receiving the money
on time, the delinquency portfolio should be
in a better position. He also said that when
they received the funds earlier it had an
impact on the surplus of the Credit Union. As
of December 2020, total delinquent loans
were $1.1M. That is $45M or 44% in the
category of 1-29 days. Thirty-Five Million or
35% of the loans outstanding were in the cat-
egory of 30 to 60 days. Eleven million or 11%
of the loans were outstanding for 61 to 90
days, Two Million or 2% in the category 181
to 360 days and this area is where the concern
is and $6M or 6% in the category over 360
days.

He said the Board will ensure that there is
continued growth and continued viability and
profitability of the Credit Union. He encour-
aged the members to utilize the services of-
fered by the Credit Union to secure all their
loans to transform and enhance the quality of
their lives.

Mr. Tulloch informed the meeting that this
year the Credit Union would be putting on
seminars dealing with Wills and Financial
Management. He said that the Marketing
Team has intensified their work to reach
people on social media.

The Treasurer reminded the meeting of the
Mission of the Credit Union. He thanked the
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members of the for supporting the Credit
Union and his fellow Board Members and
staff for their continued dedication to the
survival of NAJ & Health Services Credit
Union. He thanked Bogle & Company and the
Jamaica Cooperative Credit Union League for
their support.

The adoption of the Auditors and Treasurer’s
Reports was moved by Miss Lilian Lewis and
seconded by Mrs. Shirley Hibbert. The
motion was carried.

Proposal for the Fixing of Maximum Liability
It is proposed that the Maximum Liability to
December 31, 2019, remains at 16 times
Capital and Reserve. This was moved by
Mr. Derrick Tulloch and seconded by
Mrs. Constance Roberts-Perkins.

REPORT OF THE NOMINATING
COMMITTEE

The Nominating Committee Report was pre-
sented by Mrs. Patsy Edwards-Henry Chair-
person of the Committee. The report was
found on page 68 with the amendments that
were given earlier. She informed the meeting
that according to Rule XII the three members
of the Nominating Committee shall be
appointed by the Board of Directors. The
three members are Patsy Edwards-Henry,
Egon Fagon, and Ashani Thomas. She
informed the meeting of the terms and condi-
tions under which members could be nomi-
nated to serve and for what periods.

o O

ELECTION OF OFFICERS
The President invited Mrs. Sheryll Brown
from the Department of Co-operatives and

Friendly Societies to preside over the election
of Officers.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The members of the Board of Directors retir-
ing are Janet Core-Far, Derrick Tulloch,
Deryck Graham, Charmaine O’Reilly, Hilary
Jones, Doreen Cushnie, Robert Hibbert,
Audrie McNab, and Claudia Wallen. She
asked if there were any nominations from the
floor and online three times. There being
none. The members on the Board duly elected
to serve are Janett Coore-Farr, Derrick
Tulloch, Deryck Graham, Charmaine
O’Reilly, Hilary Jones, and Doreen Cushnie
serving for one year, and Robert Hibbert,
Audrie McNab, Claudia Wallen serving for
two years.

A motion for the acceptance of the Board of
Directors was moved by Mrs. Iona Whyte-
Lawson and seconded by Mr. Barrington
Hibbert. The motion was carried.

THE CREDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Credit Committee retir-
ing are Constance Roberts-Perkins, Novlette
Arthurs, Dion Murphy Nedrick, Blondel
Walker, and Camille Williams. She asked
three times if there were any nominations on
the floor both physically and online for
nomination to the Credit Committee. There
being no nominations, the members duly
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elected to serve are Constance Roberts-
Perkins, and Novlette Arthurs for one year,
Dion Murphy Nedrick, Mureen Young-
Sewell, and Camille Williams, for two years.

The motion for the members to serve on the
Credit Committee was moved by Miss
Doreen Cushnie and seconded by Miss
Novlette Robinson. The motion was carried.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

For the Supervisory Committee, the nominees
are Barrington Hibbert, Beretta Thomas, Ser-
ica Brandon-Betty, Dennis Vincent Berry, and
Blondel Walker. It was asked three times if
there were any nominations from the floor.
There being no nomination from the floor
Barrington Hibbert, Beretta Thomas, Serica
Brandon-Betty, Mendis Dennis-Vincent and
Blondel Walker were nominated to serve for
a term of one year.

MINUTES

A Motion was moved by Mr. Derrick Tulloch
and seconded by Ms. Donna Charles. The
motion was carried.

NOMINATION TO THE LEAGUE
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Permission was sought for the Manager,
Secretary, and Treasurer to be allowed to be
elected to the League’s Annual General meet-
ing. The motion was moved by Mr. Egon
Fagon and seconded by Dr. Hilary Jones. The
motion was carried.

Mrs. Brown reminded the members of the
Board to meet and select officers and submit
the information to the relevant agencies
within two weeks after the meeting.

There was a moment of prizes and surprises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
REPORT

Board of Directors’ Report
to the Annual General Meeting

for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

F ellow Co-operators, it is indeed my pleas-
ure to present this report on behalf of the
Board of Directors of the NAJ & Health
Services Credit Union. We have indeed
weathered the COVID Pandemic this far and
managed a successful year of operations. We
were successful and skillful in our financial
negotiation and proactive actions were neces-
sary for this changing COVID environment.

CAPITAL BASE

We continue to work in readiness for the Bank
of Jamaica Credit Union Regulations. One of
the main requirements for licensing under the
BOJ Credit Union regulations is to ensure we
meet the Capital adequacy, and our Institu-
tional Capital is above the standard set by
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League
(JCCUL) PEARLS and BOJ’s primary ratio
of 8% and 6% respectively. Our Credit Union
Institutional Capital stands at 8% which is
within both the League and BOJ’s standards.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN KEY
OPERATING AREAS
The performance of the Credit Union in key

Janett Coore Farr
President

areas of operations resulted in total assets
moving from $771.41 million to $861.80 mil-
lion, an increase of $90.39 million or 11.0%
compared in comparison to the year 2020.
The loan portfolio increased from $517.21
million to $639.02 million, an increase of
$121.81 million or 24%. The savings portfo-
lio increased from $354.08 million to $388.70
million, an increase of $$34.62 million or
10%. Please see the table below highlighting
two years of key operating statistics:

2021 2020 % Growth
M M
Member Share 388.70 | 354.08 10
Permanent Share 15.82 15820 4
Members Deposit 356.13 | 304.39 17
Loans Originated 639.02 | 517.21 24
Total Assets 861.80 | 777.41 11
Institutional Capital 68.02 67.96 -
Surplus/Deficit (6.49) (6.40) 1
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Momber Parmanent Mombers

Shares Shares Doposit
m2021M 384.7 15.82 A56.13
5 2020M 354 .08 15.21 204,38

Key Operating Areas
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RISK AND COMPLIANCE

The Credit Union continues to ensure that the
policies, procedures, and programs to prevent
and detect money laundering and the finance
of counter-terrorist activities in compliance
with Jamaica’s AML/CFT regulations are in
place and being monitored.

The Credit Union also continues to maintain
a high level of compliance with all regulations
relating to its operation. Throughout the year
2021, the Credit Union continued to work
with the Credit Union League on improving
its AML/CFT framework as well as its Enter-
prise Risk Management (ERM) framework.

The staff and all volunteers were trained in the
Proceeds of Crime Act (POCA) on September
25, 2021. The training was administered by

the Credit Union League and Shirley-Ann
Eaton was the presenter.

STAFF COMPLEMENT

At the end of 2021, the Credit Union has a
total staff complement of ten (10) employees.
Throughout the year one staff resigned and
three were employed.

The Board and Management welcomed the
following persons to the staft:

¢ Ashani Thomas

¢ Tyrese Sterling

¢ Annie-Kay Gray

MEMBERSHIP GROWTH

For the year 2021, 288 persons were received
into membership compared to 169 in the
previous year, which is an increase of 119
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members. The total portfolio now stands at ¢  Edith Allwood-Anderson
5350 compared to 5062 compared in the year ¢  Kim Atkins

2020. The Credit Union’s Marketing Team ¢  Veronica Stewart
headed by Mr. Ashani Thomas has been mak- ¢  Fitzroy Brown

ing considerable efforts to market our prod- ¢  Veva Martin

ucts and services to all the medical e  Ayinde Musari
professionals across the island, to assistthem ¢  Annette Best

to realize their dreams. ¢  Donnette Gray-Morris
OBITUARIES MEETINGS

The Credit Union Board and Management
extend condolences to all members and their
families who lost loved ones during the year
2021. The following members passed on dur-
ing the period under review:

the following table depicts the attendance at
meetings of Board Members who were
elected to serve during the period under
review:

Attendance at Board Meeting
Names Times Attended | Special Note
Possible
Janett Coore Farr 12 8 Three (3)
Robert Hibbert 12 4 meetings were
Derrick Tulloch 12 6 not held due to
Charmaine O’Reilly 12 5 COVID-19
Doreen Cushnie 12 9
Audrie McNab 12 6
Hillary Jones 12 4
Deryck Graham 12 8
Claudia Wallen 12 9
LEAGUE AGM Board members, JCCUL Group staff, and

The Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union
League’s 80th Annual General Meeting was
held at the Credit Union House’s Sullivan
Hall on Saturday, June 5, 2021, and via Zoom.
One hundred persons comprising credit union
delegates, alternate delegates, JCCUL Group

observers were in attendance on the Zoom
platform while 16 persons attended in person.
These include the Registrar, some JCCUL
Board members, the Supervisory and Nomi-
nating Committee Chairperson, and JCCUL
Group staff.
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Mrs. Janett Coore Farr, Mr. Derrick Tulloch,
and Dr. Desreen Marquis were in attendance
on behalf of NAJ & Health Services
Co-operative Credit Union.

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

Despite the challenges faced by the Credit
Union, the Board of Directors saw it fit to
continue to assist individuals and institutions
as follows:

¢+ Nurses Association of Jamaica Island
Conference

NAJ Summer School

Caribbean School of Nursing

Hear the Children Cry

Tamar McFarlane Marshall

Lillian Lewis McDonald

* O ¢ o o

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we wish
to thank the many individuals and organiza-
tions who partnered with us throughout the
year under review. These include the Credit
Union League, Credit Union Fund Manage-
ment, CUNA Caribbean Insurance, Jamaica
Co-operatives Insurance Agency, Centralized
Strategic Services, Department of Co-opera-
tives and Friendly Societies, Nurses Associa-
tion of Jamaica, and the Ministry of Health
and Wellness In-service Education Unit.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS'

REPORT

Special appreciation to our Chief Executive
Officer, Dr. Desreen Marquis, her excellent
management team, and dedicated staff mem-
bers. Their performance throughout the year
was exemplary. We looked forward to inter-
esting marketing strategies and Birthday
Greetings on the Social media platforms
which assisted in the positive performance of
the Credit Union, particularly among the
younger age cohort.

We also wish to thank the Supervisory and
Credit Committee members who have worked
tirelessly to help us realize our dreams.
Thanks also to our dedicated members who
have supported their Credit Union and con-
tinue to make it successful.

Henry Ford’s quote, “If everyone is moving
forward together, then success takes care of
itself.”

We look forward to giving continuous dedi-
cated service to this awesome Credit Union

family.

Yours sincerely

N I Lia .'"_i % 1‘-"‘-‘

Janett Coore Farr (Mrs.)
Board President
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Janett Coore Farr Dr. Robert Hibbert Derrick A. Tulloch, JP
President Vice President Treasurer

Charmaine O’Reilly Doreen Cushnie Claudia Wallen
Assistant Treasurer Secretary Assistant Secretary

Dr. Audrie McNab Deryck Graham Dr. Hillary Jones
Director Director Director
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PUBLIC RELATIONS

Credit Union Week

F

AJ & Health Services Credit celebrated  well as participated in activtiies and won
Credit Union Week during the period  prizes.
October 17-22, 2021. Members were feted as
Below are a few pictoral highlights of the

week.

e Ak

Members of staff pose with the nurses who participated in
International Credit Union Day. Mr. Tyrese Sterling, Delinquency Officer, educates

our members abou the products and services offered
by the NAJ & Health Services CCU.

Team Building Session

Bl | e
NAJ & HSCCU members checking out our loan information
booth at our 2021 Credit Union Week-long actvities held at
the head office.

Two of our members win

prizes during Interna- NAJ & Health Services Credit Union staff pause
tional Credit Union Day to take a photo while at a Team Building Session
activities. held in December at the Hilton Rose Hall Resort

& Spa in Montego Bay.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams

2021 ANNUAL REPORT




STAFF MEMBERS

o, . . [y, (B, o . i o

Renee Collins
Loans Manager

Vivienne Wallace
Accounting Manager

Ashani Thomas Gary Fisher
Marketing Officer Tyrese Sterling Lindon Brown Accounting Officer
Delinquency Officer Member Service Rep/

Relief Cashier

Donna Brown Elvira Austin Annie-Kay Gray
Cashier/Payroll Officer Office Assistant Administrative Assistant
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DEPARTMENT OF CO-OPERATIVES & FRIENDLY SOCIETIES

# i CHARITIES AUTHORITY, JAMAICA
Ministry of Industry, Investment and Commerce
2 Musgrave Avenue, Kingston 10
amuaica, W I,
g Tel: (B76) 9274912 | 927-6572 | 97816
E-mall: info@dcisgoy.jm Website: www.dcisgavim

=
WPE BEFLY 08 SUSECRENT ERTERISNCT TOF TR OO B4 T KRR aENMESSED TO TP MIGITTEAR ANG THE FUELLEAW EEFIERS)
HaTrNL
51 .
RASL/SST0S21 May 31, 2022

The Secretary

MNAL & Health Services Co-operative
Credit Undon Lirmibed

& Trevennion Park Road

kingston 5

Dear Sin'Mhiadam:

| forward herewith the Financial Stmtements of your Society for the wyear ended
December 31, NI21

The Annual Genersl Mestomg A0N ) must be convensd under Regadfetion 19, 20 and 25 a-1 of
e Co=operative Societics (Amendment) Regulmtions, 2021, A least seven (7 davs’ notice shall
b piven before the mesting is held

A copy of vour repor, which vou intenid 10 present 1o the Annual General Meeting on the year’s
wirrking of the Society i sel forth in Repafotion 55 (b of the Co-opemtive Socicties
Regulonions should be forwarded oo thas office

Kindly sdvise the Depantment of the date of the Annual General Meeting, 3o th armangements
can be made for representation

Wours truly.

Lavern fibson-Eccleston ( Vrs )
i Far) Hegisirar of Co-operative Societies
And Friemdly Socicties

HOFE (A RINESS MASDEVILLE MANCHESTER MOoNTEGD Bay, ST JAMES
Hoge Giardens 13 Cabedanis Roal 1 Dieliser Drive
Ringslon & [RATrA Risig.) § Thie CHTaee ol the Prims Minlsies)
(ETE) UTT-TA0N [ 1T WAN IKTH} BIS-008) {XTh) BE2-THLE
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Bogle and Company
Chuard pred fccosmianks
Aciick Bors i

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Registrar of Co-operative Societies
MAJ & Health Services Co- ¥ L

(A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Socleties Act)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statemenits

Opinlon

We have audited the financial statements of NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union
Limited (“"the Credit Union™) st out on pages 5 to 29, which comprise the statements of
financial position as at December 31,2021, the statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in eguity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
camprising significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information.

In gur opinien, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Credit Union as at December 31, 2021 and of financial performance and cash
Hows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards
[FFRS]), and the Co-operative Societies Act,

Basks for Opinion

We conducted cur audit In accordance with International Standards on Auditing [I54s). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
far the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our repoart. We are independent of the
Credit Union In accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have fulfiled our other ethical
riesponsibilities inaccordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
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Independent Auditor's Report {cont"d)
To the Registrar of Co-operative Socictics

AL & Health Services Co-operative Credil Unfon Limied

{A Society Registered Under the Co-operative Societies Act)

Report on the Awdit of the Financial Siatemenis {cont d)

Hey Audit Matters

Koy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in aur audit af the financal statements af the current period. Theie matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements and in forming ouwr opinion
theerean, and we do not prowicde a separale opinion on theie maltrers.

— — e

How wie :l:l-cir-:.ssad- ey :udl't.méi.::-n

Other Assets contained significant balances | We analyzed these accounts and ensure that
in respect to bod debts recoverable and these amount were adjusted ta reflect the
misapprapriation recoverable amounts

Other Information

tanagement 5 responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information includad in the anaual repodt but does not intlude the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report s expected to be made available to ws after
the date of this avditor's repont

Qur gpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
exprass any form alf assurance conclusion therson

In coennection with aur audit af the financial stataments, our responsibeliTy 15 Lo read the other
infarmation identified abowe when it becomes avaflable and, in dodng so, cansider whether the
other information s materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge
abtained in the audit, or atharwice appears 10 be matenally mesiiated.

When we read the annual report, (f we concludes that these i 8 material misstatement theren,
whie arg reguired to communicate the matter to the Board of Directors

Responsibilities of Management and the Booard of Directors for the Financial Statements

Managemeant & responsible for the preparation of finpncial statements that ghee a true and Falr
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Co-
operative Societies Act, and for such internal control as mpnagemeant determines is necessany
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether doe to fraud or grfar

in preparing the financlal statements, management s responsible for assessing the Credit
Unign's abkility to continue as a gobng concern and dischosing, as applicable, matters related o
RO CORCarm.
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The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Credit Union's financial reporting
Process.,

Independent Auditor’™s Report (cont’d)
To the Registrar of Co-operative Societies

Mo & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Limited

(A Sociely Registered Under the Co-operative Societics Act)

Report on the Audil of the Financial Statements (cont'd)

Auditar's Retponsibilities for the Audit of the Finandal Statements

Our objectives are to abtaln reasanable assurance abeut whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatermnent, whether due ta fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our optnicn. RBeasonable assurance is 3 high level of assurance
but is not a guarantees that an audit conductad in accordance with International Standards en
Aupditing [154) will always detect a material misstatement when It exists, Misstatements can
arise from frawd or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expectad to influsnce the economic decislons of users taken on the basis
of thess financial statemeants.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements i included
inthe appendix of this auditor's report. Thit description, which is located on page 4, forms part
of aur auditar's repart

Report on additional matters as required by the Co-operative Socinties Act

We have abiained all the mfarmation and explanations which, to the bast of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit. In our epinlon, proper eccounting
recards have been maintalned, sa far as appears from our examination of those records, and
the himancial statements, which are in agreement therewith, give the information required by
Co-operative Societies Act. in the manner reguired.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditar’s report s Warrick
Bogle.

...... - wle . —=—===3

OGLE E COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

April 19, 2022
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Appendix to the Indepandent Auditors Report

As part of an audit in accordance with 1585, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional shepticlam throughout the asdit. We alsa:

= identify and assess the nsks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due-to fraud or erros, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
ohtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than for ane
resulting fram error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omisiions,
misreprisentations, or the override of internal contral.

= Obtain an understanding of intérmal controd relidant to the audit in order te design audit
prbtc—durl‘; that are approgriate in the drcumstances, bt nok far the purpose af EXpTELIINg
an opifion on the efectiveness of the Credit Unian's internal eantral

. Evaluate the appropriaténgss al accounting policie: wigd and the reaionablensss al
ACCouning ESiamptes and refated disclosures mads h'f MENAEEMENT.

¢  Conclude on the appropriatensss of manogements use of the pgoaing concern basis of
accounting and, bated on the sudit evidence obtalned, whather a material uncertainty exists
refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Credit Union's ability to
continue as a godng concam. IMwe conclude that a material uncertainty ewists, we are reguined
to draw atiention in ouwr auditor's report to the rolated disclosures in the financial statemaents
or, if such disclotures are inadeguate, to m-l:||;||I'1|- our gpinion. Qur canclutions are based on
the audit evidenca obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future svents o
conditicns may cause the Credit Union to cease to continue as @ going conceim.

= Evaluate the owverall presentation, structure and eantent of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whather the financial staterments represent the underling transactions
and events in & manner that presents a trus and fakr vbaw

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any skgnificant deficiencies In internal
control that we identifly during our audic

We alio provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding |ndepundﬁntﬂ- and communicate with them all relationihins: and cther
matiers that may reasanably be thought 0o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors we determing those matters that were
of most significance im the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We dederibe these matters in our auditer’s report unless law of regulation
precludes public discloswre about the matters or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that @ matter should not be communicated in our report becavse the adverse
consequences of deing 5o would reasanably be expected to outwelgh the puble interest bensfits of
such communicatson.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

L1704}
Mon-ourrent assets

Carning:
Farans Bl inveitments
Loans ariginated

WNon-earning:
Property. plant & equipment
Retiremant benefit asset

Current assots

Earrinmg:

FEman@ial investments
Loans originated
Liguid assets

Mon-saming:

Other assats
Cash and bank balances

Total assots

L -

10
11

2031 2020
5 5
15,529,784 17,523,907
617.469,703 507,118,552
642,999,487 524,742 459
49 848,321 53,054,098
7,135,158 1,602,159
56,987,479 59,656,257
179,028,020 135,407,051
11,551,733 10,055,655
1,950,502 5,11E 158
192,570,255 154620954
12,198,656 16.598.221
_7,042.173 21,396,796
19,240,865 28,395,017
BE1, 798,090 777,814 687

The fimancial statemants were apgwoved by the Eoard of Clrectars on Apell 19, 2032, and signed

on its behali by

M. Janett
President

M, Darrick Tullocs ™,

Treazurer
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Equity and Liabflities

Equrity:

Members' permanent shargs
Institutional capital
MNon-institutlonal capizal
WUndistributed surplss

fon- current liab@ities

Interest bearing liabilities:
Maembass' shares (voluntary)
Esternal credit- long-term partion
Current liabiities

Interest bearing Habilithes:
Members' shares [valuntary)

External credit - coment partion
Members® deposits

Noni-intierest-boaring Nabilities:
Payables & accruals

Tatal egquity and llabilivies

]

16
17
18

19

Ell 4280
5 5
15588 801 15,205,745
68,015,588 §7,963,988
12,195,553 15 ag2011
_ |BA00018)  _ (5400.516)
T $9,535994 90,250,128
132,155,188 142,005 505
231,143,033 25112 568
154,298,121 147,178,073
256,517,158 231,010,886
2,729,735 1,754,888
356,130,191 304,393,258
B15.377.088 537,659,032
2,586,791 2327 454
2,585,791 2,3074%
851,798,090 777414687

The financlal statements ware approved by the Board of Directors on Aprid 12, 2022, and s'gned on

its behalf by,
-—'_'_'_'_-
\ . T

Mz, Janeit Coors -Farr
President

e — Trra
btr, Derrick Tulloch ™
Treasurer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Interest income
Interest on members’ loans
Interest on investments

Financial expanies
Loss on imvestment
External credis
Shares & deposits

Net interest income

Mevremdent on loan impairment provision

Bad debts [written off)

Met interest income afters allowance far loan loss

Other income
Gross margin
Operating expenies
Deficit for the year

Other comprehanshe income

itemis that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Pensan re-measurament

Total comprehensive loss

Motes

20

21

811 200
5 5
56,588,983 52,944,218
3,149,203 3,367,371
59,738,186 56,311,539
103,621 -
2,201,364 2,495,713
9,358,831 B, 217,304
11,673,816 10,713,017
48,064,370 45,598,522
847872 (7.009,691]
(2,249,114} -
47,663,128 38,588,831
12,123,615 8,524,278
59,786,743 47,113,109
{60.204,246)  |56,291.387)
(417,503) (9,178,278)
{136,000) 269,000
{136,000 268,000
{553,503) (8,209,278}

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Mo -
Permanent  Iastitutional  institutional  Undtibeted
Shared Capital Capital Surpluey Total
5 5 5 5 5

Decamber 31, 2019 14,808,638 &7 540,183 12 a2, 144 2,510,303 98,201,273
Deficit for the yoor S 1782781 [(9.178,278]
Entrance fessy 23.200 23,800
Pension remaaturamsnt JED,000 265 00
Transfer from swrplus [265,459] 265,459

share subscriptions 387,107 397,147
share transfer fund 32,808 32,808
Dad dabi regarys G57.962 657962
Donation reserve [155,705] {155, 705)
Dividend resenve ___21al 2,161
Decambar 31, 2020 15,205,745 &7 963,988 13,482 911 [6,402516) 590250128
Daficit for the year (417,503) (417,503}
Entrance fees 51,600 51,600
Retiremeant banafit reserse (327.001] 327,001 |
Bad debt recowerable [(FO7.314) [FO7 310
Pension remeasurament (135, 000) {13&,000)
Share subscriptions b12.126 612,126
Share transfer fund 52 957 528957
Donation resare {170, 05} (170.000]
Balance Decamber 31, 2021 15817671 680015588 132,195553 (6.493,018) 89.535994
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Cash flows from operating sctivitkes
Deficit for the year

Adjustiment to reconcile loss for the vear 1o net cash
from operating activithes

Dapreclation
Bad debt reserve
Aetirement benefit assat

Mmas:—{q’ﬂ::fzme i Eurnent assely
Oher ascats

_iﬂc_fgasgﬁ iy eage] in current habelitiss
Payables & accruals

Met caszh flowrs provided flused) by operating activities

Cazh flows from imvesting acthvities

Loans to meEmbers

Fimancial imvestmizEnls

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Disposal of property plant and eguipment
Met eash used in investing activities

Cash flgnart from financing activities
Membear: thares & deposita

Delaried income

Extérnal eradit

Parmanent thares

Entrance fees

Appropriations

Met cash flows provided by financing activities

ket (decrease]fincrease in cash & cash eqguivalents
Cash & cash eguivalents &t the beginning of the year
Cash & cash eguivalents st the end of the yoar

Represen by;
|JI:|'..III:|- SEiels
Cath and bank balancad

_{108,662,595]

2021 2020
2 3

{417.503] (9.178.278)
1,534,377 1,879,714
(707,314} .
463,001 265,450
872 561 (7,033,0095]
4,785,535 (64600079
255,337 175,104
5931423 (13,317,980
(131,807 189] (54,039, 053)
12,473,194 & 188 45%
{87.751) (1,119,477
?55‘.1':-]. ) iT2.775

[49,697,296]

B5,332 BEE 75,555,019
= (54,013}

{1,494, 688] (1,257 294)
612,126 3971087
51,600 23,800
(253,043) 537,226
BS, 248 EEZ 4,501 845
{17,482,289) 11,486,569
46,514,964 15,028 305
9032675 26,514 Bhd
1,990,503 5118168
02,173 21,396,796
8,032,675 8,514,964
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

L. identilication & Activities

N & | & Health Services Co-pperative Credit Uinkon Lid- *the Credit Union®

@) The Credit Unkan B ncorporabed under the aws of Jamaica and is registensd under tho
Co=gpErative Socielet Act, The Credit Undon's registered olficoe i3 letated & Trevennion
Fark Road, Kingston 5, Jamaica,

b} Membership B restricoed (o members of the Muresl Association of lamaica and other
migdical professionals and thedr farmilios. The llability of members is limited by shares

c} Mo member may hold more than 20% of the total share capital

d] The main activitied of the Credit Union are to promate thrift among its members Ly
affording thom an ogporiumity (o accumulais their Lavings and 1o create for them § source
of credit for provident or productive purposes at reasonabls rates of interest

#) The Credit union & exsmpled Irom Inedme Thx under Sectidgn 59[1] ol the Ca-aperitive
Societied Act and Section 12 af the Income Tax Act

2. Significant Accounting Policies
a) Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have beon used in preparation of the financial
stal Gments and Sammsrded below and have bean consistenlly applied los all the years
presenied. The meaiurement bases used are those ipecified by Internatsanal Financial
Reporting Standards {IFRS) for sach type of asset, liability, income and expense, The
meEasuntment bases are more fully describod in the accounting policies below

statement of complianc®

The lmancisl cialesments have bean prepared in accordance with intermatisnal Financial
Reparting Standards [(IFRS)L and their interpretations adopted by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board [LASH)

Hew, mmvised, amended standards and migrpretations that became effective during the
year,

interest rate benchmark reform = Phase 2 (dmandments 1o IFRS 8, IFAS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16]
offective after lpnoary 1, 2021

Covid 19 -Aslated Rent Concessions bayvand June 30, 2021 (Amendments 1o IFRS 16] elffectve
aher April 1, 20021

Theoe mew, reviied, amended slandards and inberpietations have had no impact o the Credit
Unian™ 4 financial statements

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Significant Accounting Policies {cont®d)

Basis of preparation (cont’d)

Mews, reviced and amended standards and interpretations that are isued but not yet
elftective,

Clasiification of Llabilities as Current or Mon-Current (Amendments to 185 1] effective after
lanuary 1, 2023

Reference to the Concepiual Framework (Amendments 1o IFRS 3) effective alter January 1.
022,

Oneraus Contracts = Cost of Fulfilling a Contract [Aumendments (o 1AS 37) elfective lanuary
12022

Thase new, revided, amended standards and interpretations arng not expected to have any
slgnalecant impdct aon the Credit Union's financial statements

Functianal currency

The amidunts spated in the linancal stilerments aré in lamaican Dollars wwhich is the funétional
currancy of the primany acanamic anvironment in wihich the Credit Union aperated

Bagls of measuranent

The fimancial statements have been prepared on the hivtorical cost bason sxcept far certain
Hmancial instruments that are megsured b (o value 53 explained in the sccoenting polickes
bl

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consederation gven in exchange for
poods and services Fale value 15 the price (hat walbd be recsived Lo sall o 5556t aF paid 1a
transfer a iabiliny in an orderly (ransaction bapsween market participants a1 the meaiurement
date, regardiess of wheiher that price b directly observable or estimated Using another
valuation technigus

in additkan, for financial FEROTLING purDies, fair value meassremenis dreé categorised into
lewvel 1.7 or 3 based ‘on the degeoes to whikch the inputs Lo the fair value measuremen?s are
cbservable and the significance of the inpuls B the fair value mesdurement n 113 entirely,
wihich are described as follows

Lowed 1 imputs are guoted prces junadjosted) bn active markets lor idesiticel assets ar
labilinies that the Credin Union can accbss ot the messurement date

Livwed 2 imputs ane inputs, other thsn guoted prices ncludad within level 1, thot ane
chservable for the asset or Hability, aither direetly or indirectly,

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Significant Accounting Policles [cont™d)
a) Basis of measuremaent (cont’d)

Level 3 inputs are unobservable Inputs for the asset of liabilivy

Uie of estimates and Judgements

The preparation of the financlal statemeants bo conform with International Financial
Reparting Standards (IFRS) reguires management to make astimates and assumptions that
affect the reparted amownts of, and disclosures relathng to assets and Habilities at the
reporting date, and the mcams and sxponces for the year ended. Actual amounts coubd
differ from theie estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptlions are reviesed on an ongoing bBasis, Revisions to
the accounting estimates are recagnized in the pariod |nowhich the estimate is revised, and
future persed if the revition alfects bath current and future pariods

ludgemeants made by management in the application of Internatianal Reporting Flnancial
Standards [IFRS) that have significant effect on the financlal statements and esthmates with a
signilficant risks of material adjustments are discusted below
1. Useful Lives of Property, plant and eguipment
The useful life of proparty, plant and equipment e reviewsad at the reporting date, and, if

Ny eapiclations differ from previous estimates, the charge s accounted for as a chirge i
BCCOUNnUNE eitirmates.

. Going concern
The preparation of the financkal statements in sccordance with IFRS agsumes that the Credit
Unian will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This means that the
statements of profit o bose and ather comprehandber income and financlal position astwme
fia intenton or neoessity 18 hguidate the Credit Unlan or curtaill the scale of operation

1. Covid -19 Impact

The warld Health Organdzation (WHO) has declared the coronavinug, Covid-19, to be a
pandemic. lamaica discovered its first case on March 10, 2020,

The pandamic has had no significant impact on the oparations of the Credit Undon in the
Current year

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Significant Accounting Policles
bl Freperly, Plant and Equipmeant

The codt of an item of property, plant and equipmant (8 recognided as an asset H, and only il
It i% probable that future economic benefits assoclated with the item will flow o the entity
and the cost of the item can be reliably measured

An item of property, plant and eguipment that gualifies for recognition as an asset is meatured
at its cost,

The Credit Unlon recognises deproclation under the expense hoading of “depreciation” in
the peried.

The depreciable amount of an azset i allocated on a systematic basiz over its useful life.

The depreciation is charged using the straight-line method and b designed to wnite off the
cost assets over the period of thedr useful lives. The annual rates of depeeciation are a5 Tollows

Building 2.5%
Furnituee, fixtueres & eguipment 10%
Computer and Equipmant 0%

Repairs and maintenance expenditures are charged to the profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

€] Employes benefits

Thee cost of providing employes benehits s recogrised in the period n which the bensfit
15 earnad by the employea, rather than when It i pald, and each category of employen
benefits are measured, prowiding detalled guidance in particular about post-employment
banefits

Defined bensfit plan

The Cradit Unipn participates in a multi-employer defined benefit plan administered by
the lamalca Co-operative Credit Union League Limited inta which the Credit unlon and its
employess make contributioni.. The Credit Uinion has an obligation te provide agread
benefits (o current and past amployees and effectvely places actuaral and nvestmeant
risk on the Credit Linion

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2, Slgnificant Accounting Poalicies [eant'd)
c] Employes benofits (cont'd)

Defined Conptribution Plan (cont’d)
The Credit Unlsn alia contribules to a defined contribution plan. Contribution by the Credit
Lnign 1o this Pan iE an CE NG 1o the Cradit Unson and the Cradit Union baars no Turthar riik

nar obligation

d

—

Financial Instrumenis; Classification; Recognition; Derecagnition and Measurement

& financial Instrument is 8n inetrement that gle® rise to a financial assst in one sntity and &
fimancial liakil iy or equity instrument ol anathar entity

Classification

Financial azssets comprise nancial investments, kbans erginated, liquid assets, cash and bank
balances and other asses. Financial Habilithes comprise voluntary shares, members deposits
and payables. Equity |5 described as parmanent shares

Recognition & Initial Measwoment

The Credit Union recogniies a financial indtrument when it becomel o party to the contractual
terms of the instrument. The Credit Unbon inftially recognise loans to members and other
#55elE on the dat= they are generated. At initial recognition the Credit Union measures a
fimancial asser ar labdlity 81 its fair value. Trantaction codt of sietd ar liabalitias carried at fair
value through profit or lois ane expented.

Clazsification and subseguent re-mekiurement
The Credit Unilon has classified s fnancial instrumeants in the following msasurement
categories

= Amortised cost

= Fair value thoouith profit or loss

Financial investmants

Financial investmants are fimancial instruments which are hald to collect contractual cash
fiows and 1o sell

Permanent shares held with the Jamaica Co-operative Cradit Linion League ang equity

instruments. The Credit Union hat elected to measuens thede shiures at fair valse through
Eralit o loss

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Si‘nifil'.anl Accounting Policies [l;n-nl.'db
dj Financial instruments: Classification; Recognitien; Derecognition and measuremant [cont’d)

Fimanclal investments (cant d]

Valuntary thares, mortgage fund, gilt edge securfitias and Bond bre dabt instriements and are
megsured 8t fair value thraugh the prafit or loss

Leans originated

Loans provided by the Credit Wnion to its members are classified as loans originated. The
objectves of the loan porifalio is 1o hold and collect contractual cash flows: the perfarmance
targets of the portfolie are determined by the compliance rate in terms of interest and
principal paymeantsy and the key |:|t-.rl'1:|| mance indéx [od each p-nlﬂnlln- 1% the gdehingquency ratio,
Loan originated are measured at falr value through the profit or loss

Liguid asiets

A ligield asset s an asset that can readily be convertad into cash issimilar to cash itsell because
the asset can be sold with little impadt on 1ts value, Investments ane considered ||{IU“.'-| assets f
they can be readily lguwidated. Savings accounts bald at The Natlonal Commarcial Bank lamaica
Limited and Cumax Money Market Account held with Credit Union Fund Managemeant Company

Limited are classified as liquid assets and measured at fair value through the profit o loss

Cash and bank balances

Cash and Bank balances includes noates and caans an hand and unrestncted funds held ot othér
fimancial institutions ¢ Epresenting non-interes L-EeEar g ligpuidd aszets oened Byt Credit Linlgn

Other assets

Qther assets are sundiy recavables and prepayments. Thease arg recagniaed at far walee and
meEasUred &t amoriized cost.

Members' voluntary shares

The valuntary shares are classified as interest earming liakalities. Interest is calculated and paid
annoally based on the weighted average balance an the membars account duning the year. The
rate of interest is determined by the Board of Directors. Valuntary shares are initially recognized

at fabr value and subssguently measured a1t amortized coul.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
d} Financial Instruments: Classification; Recognition; Derecognition and measurement (cont'd)

Members" deposity

These are savings accounts hald by the members of the Credit Union. These amounts are
payable on gemand. Interest on these accounts s calculated and paid annually. The rates of
interest paid are determined by the Board of Directors, Members deposits are dassified as
finanmcial llabdlivies and are measured at amortioed cost

Pormanent shares

This represents equity in the Credit Unban which cannat be withdrawn But may be
transferred to another member o repurchased by the Credit Unian. These sharas are
classified as equity and are measured at their nomimal value.

Payables & secruals

These are shart term kabilities which are recognifed at Lair walye and mepiured 3t amortized
£05t

e Institutional capital

institutional Capital includes the Statutory Reserve Fund as well a5 various other reserves
established from time to timeas is deamed necessary by the Board of Directors to support the
operation of the Credit Unlon and thereby protect the interest of the members. Thesa
resenies are not avallable for distribution

The stronger the overall capital pasition, the easier it 15 for the Credit Union to deal with future
uncertainties such as assat boss and adverse economic oycies

f} Mon - Institutional capital

Hon mnstitutional capital are amounts approved by the membess at their annuval general
meetings and set aside to facilitate outreach and development activities of the Credit Union

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Slgnificant Accounting Policies [cont'd)

h)

Revenue FECOERIEON

Interest an laans

Interest an loam is recognired when interest 15 calculated on the outstanding balance at the
beginning of sach manth, using the reducing balance method. When a loan i classified as
impaired, recagnition of interest in accordance with the original terms and conditions of the
laan ceases and Interest (s taken into account on the cash basis,

Interest on Investments

Interest income from ineeutments is recogmzed on the accrual basis.

Devidend Income

Dividend Incomee is recoagnined when the Credit Undon’s right 1o receive payment i established.
Commission and Fees

Fees and commission income are generally recognised on a cash basis when the services have
been provided

Interest expense

Inferest expEnds is recognized in the statement of profit or loss for interest bearing liabilities
on the accrual basis using the weighted average method

Cperating expense
Gpﬂillnﬁ Sxpenies gre recognized in pTr.'rfiI! or loss upon utilization of the service or a3 incurred
Allowrance for loan [mpairment

An allowrance for loan impairment is established based on lifetime expected credit loss (ECL)
winlch is the ECL that result from all possible default events over the sxpected life of the lpan
Loans for which a lifetime ELC (s recogalzed but which pre not credit impaired are referred to as
stage 17, IF significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition (s identified, the loan moves
to ‘stage 1, but is not yei credit impaired. IV the loan is credit impaiced it moves to “stage 3°
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd)
I} Allowance for loan Impairment (cont'd)

The loan loss prenision i derived based on a model which takes account of, among other
factors , the carrving amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of
expected cash flows, inchuding amounts recoverable from guarantees and collateral,
discounted at the original effective rate of interest of the loan and the probability of
default. Provision is calculated as follows:

State 1. 12 months loan repayments for loans 30 days past due
Stage 2 Pnncipal & interest for loans 31-90 days past due
stage 3: Principal only for loans over 90 days past due.

In both current and prior year regulatory prowisions are established for loans originated as a
result of a review of the carrying value of loans in arrears and are derived based on the
requirements stipulated by the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League Limited [JCOUL)
provisloning polley of making full provision for loans in arrears over twelve (12) menths.
General provisions ranging from 10 % 1o 60% are established in respect of loans in armears
for twa (2] to twelve months, Regulatory provision that exceeds Internatienal Financial
Reporting Standards are dealt with in a non -distributable loan loss as an appropriation of
undistributed surplus.

k) write-affs

Loans are written of feither partally or in full) when there i3 no reasonable expectation of
recovering It In lt5 entirety or a portion there of. This generally the case when the Credit Union
determines that the borrower does not hane assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficlent cash flows to repay the amount subject to write-off, This assessment i carried out
at the individual asset level, Recoveries of amounts wrilten off could stll be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Credit Unbon®s procedures for recovery of
amounts due,

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

| Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
2021 ANNUAL REPORT




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

3. Financial risk management

The Credit Unlon activities are related to the wuse of financial instruments which imrabes
analysis, evaluation and management of risks. The Board of Director is responsible for the
establishment of the risk management framewark.

The Credit Union has exposure to the following risks from its use of finandal instruments

= Credit risk

= Liguidity risk

= [darket risk
Credit risk

Credit risk ks the risk of financial loss to the Credit Union if a2 member or counterparty to a
fimancial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises primarily fram the
Credit Union's loans to members & debt Instruments with other Indtitutions,

Loans to members

The management of criedit risk In respect of loans to members and guarantees s delegated
to the Credit Committee. The Committee ks responsible for oversight of the Credit Unlon's
credit risk, including formulating credit policies, establishing the authorisation structure for
the approval of credit facilities, reviewing and assessing credit risk, limiting concentration of
eiposure to counterparties and developing and maintaining the Credit Union’s risk grading.
There 15-a documented credit palicy in place which guades the Credit Union's cridit review
process.

Exposure to credit nisk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure o credit rsk
[before recognithon of collateral held) at the reporting date was:
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

3. Financial risk management{cent’d)
b) Liguidity rish

Liguidity risk 15 the risk that the Credit Umon will encounter difficulty in mesting obhgations
for its hinancial habilites. The Credit Unian's approach to managing liguidity is to ensure, 3%
far as possible, that 4wl always have sufficient funds to meet its obligations when due undes
bath normal or stressed conditions. Prodent liguidity risk management sehich the Credit Unban
uses includes maintaining sufficient cash and markstable securities, monitoring Tubure cash
flowws and lguidity on a doily basis

The Credit Unlon ks subject to a Bguidity limit imposed by the Credit Union League and
compliance s regularly monitered, The key measure used by the Credit Union for managing
liguidity risk = the raths of iquid assets to total savings depasit. For this purpose, liquid assets
include loans which are expected 10 be repald within the year, cash bank balances, deposits
hebd with JCOUL and highty quid investments which are readily converted into cash within
three months. The bhgwid asset ratio at the reporting date was 0027 (2020.0.27)

2021 2020
% 5
Cash resourcos:

Loans (after pravision for loan impairment) 5,382,943 &.a6l,237
Finaneial investments 137420007 114 815678
Liguid assets 1,990 %02 5118 168
Other assets 12,198 6%6 143950
Cash & bank balances 7.042.173 21,396,796
164 041,021 148 031 455

Saving deposits and other Habilities:
Members” share capital 256,517 158 232010885
MMembers deposits 356,130,191 304,393,258
Extarnal loans BA2.434 107,708
Payables & acecrualy 2,588,791 2,327,454
615,916,574 535,089,306
Ratio .27 027
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

3. Financial risk management{cont'd)
b} Ligquidity rick (eomt'd)

The following table presents the undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities,
on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

2021
Within 3 3% Ower 12 Carrying
mignths maonths months walue
& 5 5 5

Members' share capital 252,630,534 3886624 132,155,138 383,671246
Members' deposits 218,977,583 137,152,608 - 358,130,191
External loans BEZ 434 2047301 22,143,033 24872763
Payalbles and accruals 2,586,713 - - 2.586.713

474, 877,264 143088533 154,288.221 771262018

2020
Within 3 3ta9 Dwer 12 Carrying
maonths manths micanths value
5 a 5 4

Members share capital 216,696,006 2 57.548.314 60,1595973 334444293
Members' deposits 232,103,954 . = 237,103,954
External loans 307,008 95359200 26363450 27,024,750
Payables and acoruals 2,327,454 . . 2,327,454

451,435122 58501906 85563433 596500451
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

3.  Financlal risk management{cont d]
g} Market risk

Market ridk B the rigk that the feir value or future cath Bovws af & fimancesl msirumant will
flisctuate as o result of changes in market prices. These arise mainly from changes in interest
rate and equity prices and will affect the Credit Union's income or the value of itz holdings of
fimancial instruments. The objective of market risk management & (o manage and control
market risk expotures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on rsk.
Mlarket risk exposures ane meatured using senditivity analysis.

There has been no change 1o the Credic Unlon's exposure to market risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk

Currency risk

Currency rlsk i3 the rick that the market value of, or the cash Nows fram, inancial instrumants
willl vary because of exchange rate fluctuations. The Credit Union does not deal in foreign
currencies nor currently hold any securities denominated in forgign currencies. There was th
o expodure to currency risk at the end of the reporting penod.

Interest rane risk

interest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations i the future cash Nows or fair values of
financial instrument because of a change in market interest rates. It arises when there 5 a
mismatch between interest-earning assets and interedt-bearing Rabilities which are subject 1o
Interest rate adjustments within a specified petlad. it can be reflected a8 o lass of future net
interest mcome and/or & lods of current market values. inberest rate ik s managed by hilding
primarily fiked rate financial inttruments. The Credit Union exposure 1o inberact rate risk at
the end of the end of the reporting period was as follows:

2021
Within 3 3o 12 Ower 12 Carrying
manths manths manths value
Ayl 5 5 5 5
Loans 5,388,943 6. 162,780 BT 469703 639021436
Liquid assets 1,990,502 - . 1,990,502
Financial investments 137,420,700 1,966, 364 176283907 157030958
144,800,152 E.149.174 B45.093,610 795,042,935
Liphifirias
Savings depodns 189,999 307 114,393 051 - %0 X993 I5E
Miembers' share 252,630,534 3885634 132155188 338572345
External Loans 682, 434,00 2,047,301 22,143,033 24 873,768
443 312,275 120,327,876 154,298,221 717.938.372
Total interest rate gap (298.512,123) (113,178.702] 450.795.389  B0.104.564
Cumulative gap (298,512, 123) [410,690.825) 810,104,564
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

3.  Financial risk managemeanti{cont d]
e} Market risk (cont'd]

interest rate risk(cont'd)

2020 -
Within 3 Itall Onier 12 Carrying =
mHanths months rmanths value
Ansplg 5 5 5 5
Loans 0261 ¥37 4 834 458 S07 118552 517214247
Liguid asssts 5.118.163 2 3 5, 11B, 168
Financial investments 114 815678 M.HE_?;G_E \ 15520, 784 144,557 804
125,195,083 19,045,800 522,648,336 666,890,219
Liabilities
Savings deposits 218,977,583  137.152,608 - 356,130,191
Members' shares 119,688,756 2,122,130 122065505 3540756391
Extermal Loans 307,708 953,582 26,363 450 2'.'-‘._-@5_"-'-:'._?_5_.!:_!-_
445, 174,047 140,228,330 148,428,955 737,831,332
Total interest rate gap (323.978.964) [121.181,530] 374,219,381 (70,541,113)
Cumulative gap (323,97E,964) (445,160,494) (70,941,113)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

4. Operational risk

Operational risk is the rick of direct or indirect loss arsing from a wide variety of cautes azsociated
with the Credit Union's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure and fram external
factors ather than financial risks such a@s arising from legal and regulatory reguirements and
generally accepied standards of corporate behavieur. The Credit Unign's objective when managing
operational rink 3o as 1o balance the avoldance of financial loss and damages 1o ik reputation with

ouerall cost eflectivensss and 1o avold control procedures that pestrict initiative and creativity,

The primary responsibility for the deselopment and implementation of control to identity
operatomnal riak B esegned 1o the Baard of Directors. This respansibliity is suppoamed by overall co-
operative standards for the management of operational ritk in following areas

Reguiremeants for peradic assessment of operalionsl nsk faced, and the adaguacy of controls and
procédure to address the Hsks Identilied.

Reguiremeenis for the approprigle segregation of duties, mclud: n thie independent auihorisation
of transactions;

Compligncs with regulatary and other l2gal reguiremanis,)

Documentation of controls and procedures;

Regquirements for the repaming of operational losses and proposed remedial action;
Development of contingency plans;

Ethical and butiness standards;

Hizk, mitigation, including inswrance where this s effectoe;

Compliagnee with the Cradit Union’s paliciey is supporied by 8 progromme ol periodic

FEviowWs

Capltal management

The Credit Unkan's abjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Credit Union's
aniliry te continus as ﬂaﬁiﬁ' cancern. The Credit Linkan defines its capitdl g% Permanent share
capital, institutional capital and special reserve.  Its dividend pay-out 13 made taking into
acceunt the maintenance of an adequate capiial base. The Credit Union is reguised by the
lamaica Co-operative League Limited to malntain its mstitutional capital ata minbmum of B %
of total aseats. AL the statement of finsncisl position date, this rotkd wad 11 % (20200 1 M)
which i5 in compliance wath the requirements
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

4. Operatienal risk {cont"d)

Insurance

The Credit Unken has in place the following msurance ooverage which are deamed adequate:
hidelity band; life savings & loan protection and general all nsk

Related party balances

At Decermnbeer 31, 2021, 18 members of the Credit Union's Board of Directors, Committes members
and stafl had savings and loans inclusive of Interest a5 staved below

Savings
Loans {inclusive of intereg]

stall Compliment
Wumber ol parsond &mployed

Full time
Temporarg

General Ledger & Subledgar Comparison

Balance as per general ledger
Balance ai per membars’ ledger

Dilferances

Balance as per gendral ledger
Balance it per members' ledger
Dilferences

2021 2020
L3 5
43,5593, JHE 18,7313 158
73,501,971 59 70 958
£021 2000
T T
i S
a a
FitFa |
HNar e PepoEits Loans
-] ] 5
Al 400 317 355 297 507 543 405 I57
404 4890, X117 355,312,009 &43,4595 357
: (14,417}
2020
Shares Desposits Loans
4 5 ]
109,282,136 303 965 B03 522 564 908
369,282,136 303,503 530 532,564,008

2 363
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

4. Operational rsk {cont'd)

Collaterals

The Credit Union holds collateral against loans ta members in the form of morigage interests aver
propasty, lien over motor vehicles, ather registered fecuritied over asiets, hypothecation of shares
held in the Credit Union and guaranbees. Estimates of fair walues are based on value of collateral
astesied at the time of borrowing and are generally not updated except when a loan is indivedually

aseited as impaired

5. Fimancial investments

2021
Fil -
Witin 3 3 to 12 months  Ower 1 year ki ind,
manths vl e
Equity instruments-Unguoted s 5 4 »
Parmament shined - 2007 555 2,007 555%
Crrdinary shares 30,480 930 480
Eaypisy Instrumenis-Ouoted
Ordinary shares 2,606, 716 2,606, 720
Debt Instrumeznis
Cumas hMonsy Markat Fund 114 B15 678 ' 114 BYS &FR
income porilolio 14, 212.342.00 - 14,212,342
Waalth Management fund . g as7T 3116 54957 316
Capital Growth Fund - orar ___-____.E'EI;I'.F ____.E,.?EJ'_
114 B15 678 14,212 342 00 15,529 7TE4 144 557 804
2020
Within 3 § Carrying
o 3 to 12 moanths  Ower 1 year waliin
Equity Instruments-Unguoted 5 £ 5 5
Permansnt shares - 1 2,007,555 2.007 555
Ordinary dharsy = s QINAB0 930 480
Equity Instruments-Ouoted
Ordimary shares - - 3,004 67 3,004 619
Debt Instruments
Cusmiay Money Markar Fumnd 137 420, 707 - 137 40,107
Incoame poriiolio - - 11,114, 644 11,114 Gadg
Imvestrmesnt im Lkl DRt - 1,985, 384 - 1,985, 384
Capital Growth Fend s - 506,549 GGG G40
137,420,707 1,585 384 17,623 907 157030908
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

6. Leans originated

J021
Within 3 Atald 1to5 Over 5 Total
Months ianths Years Years Value
s » > 5 5
Frincipal 1,284,758 14.730,790 261,359 980 3Ab6b6 200 723 643,495,252
interest receivabile 4,094,184 . £ * 4,034,184
Less provision for boan loss - [B.568.000) - - __|:_S,5F.|E.DDG|'
Carrying valose 5,388,943 6,162,790 261,255 98B0 366,209 713 639,021,436
2010
Within 3 3to 13 1tas Cvers Total
Manths Maonths Years Years Valus
b 5 5 5 5
Principal 1,196,026 14,250,330 214548443 292570,109 527,564,008
Interest redenvabla 4.065,211 . - - 4,065,211
Less provision far loan loss . [9.415.872) - - (3.415,.E72]
Carrying vabue 5,261,237 4534458 214548 443 292 570,109 517.214.2a87
Movement in loan loss provision
2241 4020
3 5
Allowance for loan loss at the beginning of year 0,415,871 2406,182
Increase/{decrease} in provision [E-:?,IE?H 7,008 690
MNet prowision a1 December 31, ; é._E-E-!:..-ﬂT:-_:*_ 9415872
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

6. Loans originated (cont'd)

Provision for loan loss

The eredit union provides for loan loss using the expectad credit loss model. At the reporting date
the provision for loan loss was as follows;

2021
[ [ Mumber | |
af Expected | Caloulated
stages | Aging Leans | Credit Loss | Provision
Less than 2
Stage 1 | months 501 | 68,905,209 | 5456,062
Stage 2 | 2 -3 months 4% | 5042338 | 1083917
Stage 3 | over 3 manths 16 | 3076113 | 1.048.021
Total 544 | 77,023,560 | 8,568,000
2020
| Number
of Expected | Calculated
| Stages | Aging Loans | Credit Loss | Provision
i
' Less than 2
Stage 1 | months 441 | 56,684,571 | 5925758
Stage 2 | 2 -3 months 27 | 9,993,060 | 1891306
| Stage 3 | over 3 months 39| 4624316 ) 15983037
| Taotal S07 | 71,301,847 | 94135573
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

6. Loans eriginated (cont'd)

Regulatory provisien

Provishen required by the rules of the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Linion League Lirmkted are stated
below for comparative purposes,

2021
Total Total Savl
Months in Arrears Number | Delinguant HEII‘:S Exposure Provision
of loans lpans
5 5 5 ] %
Less than 2 months 158 | 126,633,217 | 159,007,754 (32,374,537) '
2-3 months 11 8,018,717 6,571,368 1,447 349 BOLBT2 | 10%
#4-6 months g 4,767,711 3,106,287 1,661,424 1430313 | 30%
7- 12 months [ 98237122 1,640,521 7186601 5B96,273 | 60
Ower 12 months - - - . = | 100%
Totals 184 | 145,246,767 | 171,325,930 | (22,079,163) B,128,458
2020
Total Total { '
Months in Areears | Number | Delingquent i Exposure Prowision
of loans Ioans Hale

5 5 4 ] 8%
Less than 2 months 113 | B0080655 | 97899943 | (17819294) = =
2-3 months 13| 10772843 | 10,680,138 58,705 LO77984 (| 10%
4-6 manths 9 2,100,936 896,620 1,204,316 630,281 | 0%
7- 12 months 4 1,968,837 2938292 969, 455) LI1B1,302 | 60%
Over 12 months 4 6,321,586 1,016,220 &,305,366 5,321,586 | 100%
Totals 143 | 101,251,857 | 113,431,219 | (12,179,362) 5,211,153
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

7. Property, plant & equipment

Furniture

E fixtures Blrlding Compuiers Tetsl
ALcoit 5 5 5 5
Balance December 31, 2019 4,191,381 60,281,508 849,741 65,422,630
Addition during 2020 - 1118477 1118477
Assets written off (272,7715) . . {F72.TT5)
Balance Decembear 31, 2020 3918000 60,281,508 2009218 b6,269,332
Addition during 2021 9,551 . 78,200 B7.751
Assets written off {ok3, 235) - [9%.9168] {759,151)
Balance December 31, 2021 3264922 60,281,508 2,051,502 65,597,932
Aocumulated depreciation
Balance December 31, 2019 2833608 93870782 214,030 12,335,510
Charge for the yaar 2020 131,036  1,507.024 241,650 1,375,724
Balance December 31, 2020 2054 T34 10,794 820 455 680 14,315, 234
Depreciation retired {663,235) . (95, 9940) [759,225)
Charge for the year 2021 144 585  1.507.038 441 979 2,493,603
Balance December 31, 2021 2,bd6 084 12301858 801,669 15,745,611
Larmying value
Decembar 31, 2021 618,838 47979650 1249833 40 248 321
Decembear 31, 2000 i E:EIE.EI‘.I'E 49,486,688 1,613,538 52,054, 008
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

B. Retiremant benefit asset (cont’d)

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position

2021 2020
5000 5000
Fresent Value of obligations 33,061 30,436
Fair value of plan asssts {40, 200) {38,038}
Asset recognised in the statement of financial pasition (7,139} 17,602}
Movernent tn net liability (asset)
2021 2020
5'000 5'000
Opening Net Liabdlity (Asset) (7,602) (7,598)
Pension Expenss (Income) 1,354 1,373
Total Remeasurement included in OCI 136 [2B3]
Employer’s Contributions Loy (1,107}
{7.138) [7.602
Movement in the fair value of the plan assets.
2021 2020
5'000 S'000
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 33,028 34 768
Employeas’ eontributions 642 652
Employer's contributions 1,027 1,107
interest incoame 3441 2638
Benefits pald (1,267} -
Administrative expenies {194} (246)
Actuarial loss en plan assets (1487} (420}
Fair value plan assets ot the end of period 40,200 3E,039

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

8. Retirement benefit asset {cont’d)

Plan of assets consist of the fallawing assets

2021 2020

5'000 5000
Debentures 10,451 11,907
Qusted equities 8. 295 Lo e[
Ifveitment properiies 9.172 7,742
Debentures-LSh 5,298 6,013
Repurchase agreements 3,592 1,605
Limit Trusty 2,139 1,097
Real estate investment trusts A53 787
Certificates of deposns-USD 335 415
Net current assets 1539) [748]

40,200 38,039

Expense recognired in prafit or logs

021 2020
5000 5000
Employers’ current senvice cost 1,919 1,737
interest cost on obligation 1,682 2,026
interest income on plan asssets {3,441) [2,63E)
Adminkstrative expanses 104 146
1,354 137
Amounts recognized In other comprehensive income
2021 L0320
5000 5'000
Actuarial loss on obligation (1,351} (6BE)
Actuarial lass (gain] on plan assets 1,487 220
136 {268]

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

8. Retirement benefit asset (cont’d)

Principal actuarial assumptions

2021 2010
5'000 5’000
Ciscount rate 8.00% 9.00%
Expected fuiure salary increases £ 50% 6.50%
Expectad future pension increases 3. 75% 4, 50%
Sensitivity analysis of key econamic asumptions
2011 2021 2020 2020
5'000 5000 5'000 5000
Assumption: +1% -1% +1% -1%
Discount rate 15.957) T1.856 {5,378} 7.0aa
Future salary increases 3,210 {2,7386) 2,980 {2.564)
Future pension increases 3,847 {3, 253) 3,327 {2.817)
Liability duration
2021 4020
%000 = 000
Active membears 234 2.5
Differed pensioners 11.9 LoX
All participants 216 213
9. Liquid assets
2021 2020
5 5
Savings accounts 1,173,146 4,300,812
Current accaunt B17.356 B17,356
1,590,503 5,118,168

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams ﬁ

2021 ANNUAL REPORT




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

10. Other pssets

4021 2020
- 4
Staffl loans B,236,221 8,119,510
Withholding Tax . 108,575
Rent 0,000 60,000
Bad dabt recaoverabls L1182 975 1,868.957
Other receivabla 114, 500 -
Misappropelation 2,000,000 9.116,662
Provition for Impairment = cash : (2,275.483)
12,198 6596 16,9598, 221
11. Cash & bank balances
2021 2020
5 -3
Bank-current accounts 5657473 21034618
Cashin hand - 1,384,700 - 162, 168
7042173 21,396,796
12. Permanent Shares
2021 2020
5 %
Balance at December 31 15,205,745 14,808,638
Add subscription 612, 126 387 107
15817871 15,206,745
13, Institutional capltal
2011 2020
s 5
Retained earnings 27421779 27.421,719
SLATULONY PEserve 40,553 809 40542205
68,015,588 67,963 958

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

14, Mon-institutienal capital

2021 2020
- 5
Scholarship fund reserve 70,000 70,000
Fromaotion oo7, 197 Bar 197
Share transfer fund 316,565 263 bR
Retirement Benefit Asset Reservie 7,139,157 7.802 159
Special resepve 1,350,874 1350874
Dividend reserve 1,194,142 1,194,142
Donation & gifts reseree L7518 2x1.617
Bad debt reserve - 07314
Infarmation technology development 600, 000 a0, D00
General reserve 800,000 800,000
12,195 553 13 483811
15. Undistributed surplus
2021 2020
5 5
Balance lanuary 1, (6,402 516) 2,510,303
Deficit (417 503) {9,178 278]
Transfer from retirement benefit reserve 337,001 a5 458
Balance at December 31 (6,493,018 {6,402,516]
16, Members' share capital
2021
Within 3 Ito 12 Over 12 manthi Carrying
manths manths walue
> b 5 &
252,630,534 3 886624 132,155,188 JB8.672. 346

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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FINANCIA

L STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

16, Members” share capital [cont’d)

= e

2020

i | _ATTyen
1":‘;:113' :L::n]i'lz:. Over 12 months Li'JILEE
5 . & : ]
229, BER.TEE 2,132,130 123065505 354,076,391
17, External Loans
2021 2020
5 %
Amount payable alter one year 22 143,033 25,112 568
Amount payable within one yoar .i!_,.'-::.!_ﬂ.:‘_i_ﬁ_ ,]-25"-”‘5
24,872,768 26,367,456

Thiz loam is frem Credit Union Fund Management Company Limited with the following terms

Principal - 530,985,560
Interesh Rate 10 %

Repayment peniod 15 years

Maturity date December 25,2031

Secured by legal mongage over property located at & Trevennion Park Road, Kingiton 5,
registered at Volume 1047 folio 80,

18, Membeors deposits

—_——

2021
Within 3 3to12 Crver 12 months Carrying
mantha micntha vialue
5 & 5 a
Hegular depasits T, 754 072 = 164.754.072
Flxed depoaits 170 457 667 129 457,662
Golden harvest deposits S, 085, Tad 54,085,742
Santa accodmi 21,0500 21,000
Paruner Plan 7,254 675 Ta54675
Interest payable aan, vl 40,271
Advance Protactor 116,769 116,769
218977 583 137152608 356,130,151

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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18,

14,

210,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

Members deposits (cont'd)

2030
Within 3 310132 Owver 12 Carrying
months manths rr'IErI:Il"I_ 'I.'ahi
- 5 5 5
Regular deposits 135,697,089 - 135,697,089
Fized depasits 113,996,586 113,996,586
Golden harvest deposits 54,258,218 - 54,258 118
Santa account 444, 00 . 44 000
Interest payable - INT.I65 357 IES
189,999 307 114,393 9%] 304,393 258
Payables and acoruals
2021 2020
> 5
Decansed members” balances 280,621 BEo0.621
Unallocated recelpts 381,243 223 300
Oiher accruals 130,660 5.001
Audit fees A0 T 500 503,500
Vacation leave 86,538 144 893
Withholding Lax payable 05, 220 560,139
2586 TOf 2337 AGE
Qther income
£021 Z020
5 5
Rental iIncome 645,000 GOE 754
Gain on valuation of equity Instrumants [397,953) 11, 120,435]
Dividends 94,247 0,972
Stabilization fund ' 754,013
Service change 3,611,444 2691076
Loan processing fees B 1M0ETT 5.409.233
12,123,615 8,524,278

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

21, Operating expenses

P!rEEnngl
Pensian

Salaries
Staff welfare and trafming

Statutory cantributions-prior year

Statutory contributions

Administrative

Audit Fees-extemal
Audit Fees-internal
Bank charges
Cleaning & sanitation
Inswrance premiums
(repreciation
Electricity
Frofessional feses
AL Monitoring
Office expafsay
Printing and statbanany

Froperty Ty

Repairs and maintenance
Secunty

Telephone & cable
Travelleng

Water

Marketing & promoticn

202 2020
5 £
1,613,286 1,372,000
26,604 814 T7.374.108
2,685,094 4,105,401

2,460,265 :
T
36,973 379 15,856, 802
7021 2020
5 5
32,500 579,025
662,025 834,750
2BB,579 311,665
BEY,TTA A4 507
4,261,770 4,194,763
2,293,602 2,208,365
1,662,447 1,719,520
745,250 445,640
1,462,500
104,741 69,241
422,207 736,980
56,600 96,600
2,275,814 2,569,588
169,724 227,122
1,628,272 1670493
20,170 29,500
1,985,035 159 388
19,378,015 16,094,237
4021 2020
g 5
262,735 219,751

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2021

21. Operating expenies [cont'd)

Representation & affiliation
Annual General Masating
League B committes meatings
League feas and other duss
stabilization dues

Training

Total operating expenies

2021 2020
5 5

540,905 503,471
922,240 682,713
1,250,674 1,423,920
452,850 894,384
123,438 516,159
3,290,117 4,020,597
T 60,204,246 56,201,387

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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l\q Report of the Credit Committee

CREDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Once more we have come to the end of
another challenging year yet successful.
The Credit Committee adapted to the new
operations and new way of functioning as we
continue amidst the COVID-19 Pandemic and
its protocols.

The Committee continued to carry out the
mandate of the Credit Union and by extension
ensured that all our members “realize their
dreams.” It was a privilege to have been
entrusted with the very important task of
assessing and approving members’ loans. It
was truly a challenging year, but the members
of the Committee remained resolute and com-
mitted to the task entrusted to them. We met
weekly to consider loan applications. We
attended quarterly Joint Board meetings with
members of the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Committee.

Members of the Credit Committee are:
*  Mrs Constance Roberts Perkins
*  Miss Novlette Arthurs

Constance Roberts Perkins
Chairperson

Miss Camille Williams
¢ Miss Dion Murphy Nedrick
¢ Mrs Mureen Young Sewell

The loans disbursed for the period January to
December 31, 2021, are highlighted in the
graph overleaf.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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CREDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Loans Disbursed

for the period January - December 2021
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CONCLUSION

The Board of Directors, Management, and
Staff of the Credit Union, your efforts and
dedication are being acknowledged at this
time. The Credit Committee wishes to thank
those members who have borrowed prudently
over the last year, and we encourage other
members to use the Credit Union more for
their borrowing needs.

To the members of the Committee, your un-
relenting commitment to your duties is again

recognized and it was a pleasure working
alongside you. It has also been a pleasure serv-
ing the organization for another year and we
will continue to do so with God’s guidance.

Yours truly

-I"Ul ] /' .-"
:’.f?,-ﬁf“-.ﬂf a e o Ale
Constance Roberts-Perkins (Mrs.)
Chairperson

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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Dion Murphy Nedrick =3 | e
Sl ..
Mureen Young Sewell
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
REPORT

l\q Report of the Supervisory Committee

for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

nly a life lived for others is worth living

(Albert Einstein). The Supervisory Com-
mittee continues to support the vision of the
Credit Union “to provide a solid financial
foundation and secured future.” We Take
pride in offering our service to our colleagues
to improve their quality of life. Our scheduled
meeting day remains the first Tuesday of each
month. The supervisory committee had its
capacity of five members, but by the third
week, our Membership fell to four through
resignation. However, for 50% of our meet-
ings, we had only three of our members honor
our obligation to the Credit Union. The
COVID 19 Pandemic, which is the new norm
for Jamaican citizens was noted as the main
stressor for the members who offered their
services to the Credit Union.

The following persons served on the Commit-
tee:

Miss Beretta Thomas — Chairperson
Mrs Serica Brandon-Betty — Secretary
Mr Barrington Hibbert

Mrs Mendis Dennis-Vincent

* & o o

The Supervisory Committee continued to per-
form the following activities as mandated to
manage the internal controls of the Credit
Union and make recommendations to protect
the Credit Union from operational risk and

4 )

Beretta Thomas
Chairperson

promote financial stability. The Committee
members attended Joint Board Meetings that
were held every quarter; but only two of its
members attended these meetings in house or
via the zoom platform.

The following are some of the areas of assess-
ment that the Supervisory Committee focuses
on — Property Insurance, Source Recording
Documentation, Bank Reconciliation, Prop-
erty Tax Payment, Staff Attendance, Petty
Cash Verification, Utility Payments, and
Surprize Cash Count. The Smith and Associ-
ates Company was contracted to audit the

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.

Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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O 0

internal control of the Credit Union quarterly.
The recommendations from the audit were
perused by the Supervisory Committee, and
the CEO was facilitated in several discus-
sions, where plans were discussed, and rec-
ommendations were made to improve
findings from the audit.

GENERAL COMMENT

The Supervisory Committee was impressed
that the operations of the Credit Union are in
accordance with the policy and protocol of the
Credit Union League.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Supervisory Committee is proud to
extend gratitude for the privilege to be able to
serve the Credit Union in this capacity.
Nevertheless, we must extend our apprecia-
tion to the Board of Directors, the Manage-
ment and staff, and the members of the Credit
Union for entrusting us with such a vital
responsibility to serve and protect the integrity
and asset of the Credit Union.

CONCLUSION
During the Economic Performance of the
Credit Union. The Credit Union recorded a
deficit of $6.49 million in comparison with a
surplus of $6.40 million. It is believed that the
deficit for 2021 was due to the negative
impact of COVID 19 and inflation of the
Jamaican dollar which continued to linger
with us. This resulted in Jamaica’s economy
declining by 4.6 percent in 2021 but is pro-
jected to show some growth in 2022 because
some of the restrictions related to the COVID-
19 Pandemic is lifted by the Jamaican Gov-
ernment. This facilitated an increased revenue
for the business sector and NAJ & Health
Services Credit Union. The Supervisory Com-
mittee stands in solidity with the Credit Union
to continue the observance of good fiscal dis-
cipline policies and procedures to facilitate
improved performance for 2022.

Yours sincerely

Bereta Thomas (Ms.)
Chairperson

~ -

€

) 4 )

Ny

Serica Brandon-Betty

Barrington Hibbert

Mendis Dennis-Vincent
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TREASURER’S REPORT

l\q Treasurer’s Report

for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Fellow co-operators I am pleased to present
the Treasurer’s Report at this our 45th
Annual General Meeting. The Credit Union
performed significantly better than in 2020.

A summary of these statements is set out in
the Treasurer’s Report in the Annual Report
Booklet.

EXTERNAL

Jamaica’s economy grew by an estimated six
(6) percent in 2021. The inflation target was
projected by the Bank of Jamaica to be
between 4 to 6 percent. However, the global
pandemic COVID 19 and the disruption of the
global logistic chain issues with supplies from
China, and the war between Ukraine and
Russia have negatively impacted inflation
globally. At the time of preparing this report
inflation in Jamaica is currently 7.9 percent
and the Bank of Jamaica Governor is project-
ing that inflation will increase between 11 to
15 percent and then trend down by mid-2023
all things being equal. The bank of Jamaica’s
monetary policy is geared toward achieving a
medium-term continuous inflation target of 4
to 6 percent. Inflation at December 31, 2021,
stood at 5.9% compared to 5.21% at Decem-
ber 31, 2021.

4 )

Derrick Tulloch, JP
Treasurer

Interest rate which has been relatively low for
the past five years have started to trend up.
The Bank of Jamaica Policy rate has trended
up from 0.5% the rate currently stands at 4.5
percent

The exchange rate remained relatively stable
in 2021 moving from US$1 to J$143.27 at
December 2020 to US$1 to 151.62 at Decem-
ber 31, 2021, reflecting a 5.74% depreciation.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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CREDIT UNION MOVEMENT Movement is as follows:
The performance of the Jamaica Credit Union
2021 2020 Variance %
$Billion $Billion $Billion

Savings 116.72 105.80 10.92 10.32
Loans 91.60 96.93 5.33 5.82
Assets 150.40 136.97 13.43 9.80
Membership 1,000,157 1,034,692 (34,535) (3.34)

The Movement has shown growth in Savings OUR CREDIT UNION
of 10.32%, Loans at 5.82%, and Assets grew  Financial Performance
by 9.8% which was above the inflation rate of oy Credit Union generated a deficit for the

5.9% in 2021. However, Membership year of $417,503 on its operations compared
recorded declined by 34,535 or 3.34 percent with a loss of $9.178.278 in 2020. This

reflecting a purging of the records of the  yofjects a turnaround of $9,595,181. Our per-

Credit Unions. formance for 2021 was negatively impacted
by a water leak on our property costing
approximately $2M and retroactive Tax on
payments not previously assessed of $2.4 M.

Summary of Income Statements 2021 & 2020

2021 2020 Variance %
$Million $Million $Million

Interest Income 59.738 56.312 3.426 6.08
Less: Interest 11.674 10.713 0.961 8.97
Expenses
Net Interest 48.064 45.599 2.465 5.40
Income
Add other 11.723 (1.514) 13.237 874.30
Income
Goss Margin 59.787 47.113 12.674 26.90
Less: Operating 60.204 56.291 3.913 6.95
Expenses
Surplus/(Loss) (0.417) (9.178) 9.595 104.54

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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Interest Income - stood at $59.738M on
December 31, 2021, compared with $56.312
M on December 31, 2020, reflecting an
increase of $3.426 million or 6.08%.

Interest Expense - grew marginally from
$10.713 million on December 31, 2020, to
$11.674M on December 31, 2021, reflecting
a change of 8.97percent. Interest rates
remained stable despite the increase in
Deposits and Shares.

Other Income - increased significantly from
a negative $1.514M to $11.723 million
reflecting an increase of $13.237M. This pos-
itive move resulted from fees generated from
the over 23.73% growth in Loans.

5 O

Operating Expenses increased by $3.913

million moving from $56.921 million in 2020

to $60.204 million in 2021 reflecting a 6.95%

increase. The major drivers were:

a. Personnel Costs of $36.9 million remain
relatively flat

b. Administrative expenses increased from
$16.09 million in 2020 to $19.38 million
reflecting an increase of $3.384 million.
The variance was driven by prior year
Statutory payments assessed on payments
not previously taxed amounting to $2.46
million. Water bills of $1.99 million,
which was due to a leak that took a long
time to identify and repair. Implementing
of Asset Management Monitoring system
by JCCUL costing $1.5 million.

Alocation of

Allocation of Revenue

55, 71

Inkmres b g ome

Crifver Enccamia
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Summary of Balance Sheet Items

2021 2020 Variance %
M M M

Total Assets 861.798 777.415 86.383 10.85
Members Share 256.517 232.010 24.507 10.56
Loans after 627.470 507.119 120.351 23.73
Provision
Member 356.130 304.393 51.73 17.00
Deposits
Financial 129.028 139.407 10.379 -7.45
Investments
Institutional 68.016 67.964 0.052 .07
Capital

Assets grew by 10.85% in 2021 moving from
$777.45 million to $861.798 million. This
growth was well over the 5.9% inflation
attained for 2021.

Members Shares increased by $24.507 mil-
lion reflecting a 10.56% growth.

Loans grew by 23.73% moving from
$507.119 million to $627.470 million reflect-
ing a growth of $120.351 million. This is
higher than the 5.82% achieved by the
Jamaican Credit Union Movement.

Deposits were $356.130 million moving from
$304.393 million reflecting a change of
$51.73 million or 17%. This demonstrates
members placing funds at competitive rates.

Financial Investments declined by 7.45% or
$10.379 million as the funds were used to
fund the increased demand for Loans.

Institutional Capital remained stable at
$68.016 million.

DELINQUENCY

As of December 2021, total delinquent loans
were $149 million. One Hundred and Two
Million Dollars or 68% of the loans in the
category 0-29 days. Twenty-Five Million
Dollars or 17% of the loans outstanding were
in the category of 30 — 60 days. The delin-
quency portfolio showed that Eight Million or
5% of the loans were outstanding for the 61 -
90 days, Four Million or 3% in the category
91-180 days, and Ten Million or 7 % in the
category 181-360 days.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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THE WAY FORWARD

We recognize that we are living in a society
that is constantly changing. Consequently, we
must change not only to meet our members’
needs but to successfully navigate through the
sea of competition permeating this financial-
economic climate.

CONCLUSION

On behalf of the Treasury, I would like to

extend much appreciation to our members for

their commitment and dedication to the Credit

Union over the years. We would also like to

recognize and thank the following:

1. Almighty God for his steadfast guidance
and assurance

ii. Board, Management, and staff for their
commitment and dedication

iii. The Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union
League

iv. Our Internal Auditors Smith and
Associates

v. Our External Auditors Bogle and
Company (Chartered Accountants)

vi. The Payroll Stations

Over the years, experience has taught us that
leadership, dynamism, and teamwork are crit-
ical ingredients for the survival of the credit
union in this competitive and dynamic global
environment in which we operate.

Finally, God bless our Credit Union and God
bless Jamaica land we love.

Yours sincerely
——*__
Derrick A. Tulloch, JP

Treasurer

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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Proposal for Fixing
of Maximum Liability

for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

RESOLUTION 1

It is proposed that the Maximum Liability to December 31, 2021 remains at 16 times the Capital
and Reserves.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Moved by:

e —
Derrick Tulloch, JP

Treasurer

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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NOMINATING COMMITTEE
REPORT

Nominating Committee
Report

for the Year Ended December 31, 2021

_\

not less than 30 days prior to each Annual
General Meeting, the Board of Directors shall
appoint a Nominating Committee of three
members, of which not more than one may be
a member of the existing Board of Directors.
Based on these rules, the Board appointed the
following persons to serve on this Committee:

¢ Constance Roberts Perkins — Chairperson
(Credit Committee)

¢ Doreen Cushnie (Board of Directors)

+ Renee Collins (Loans Manager)

Constance Roberts-Perkins
Chairperson

In performing its task, the Committee was

ﬁ ccording to Article XII, Rule 63 govern-  guided by Rule 63(1) to (3): The following
ing the operations of NAJ & Health tables indicate those who are willing to serve

Services Co-operative Credit Union Limited,

Board of Directors

Retiring Nominated Term in
Office

Janett Coore-Farr Adella Campbell 2 Years
Derrick Tulloch Kevin Allen 2 Years
Deryck Graham Nadine Anderson Lawrence 1 Year
Charmaine O’Reilly Shailee Neish 2 Years
Hilary Jones Hilary Jones 2 Years
Doreen Cushnie Novelette Robinson 2 Years
Audrie McNab Audrie McNab 1 Year
Claudia Wallen Claudia Wallen 1 Year
Robert Hibbert Barrington Hibbert 1 Year

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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Supervisory Committee

Retiring Nominated Term in
Office
Barrington Hibbert Shirley Hibbert 1 Year
Beretta Thomas Beretta Thomas 1 Year
Serica Brandon-Betty Dwight Burchell 1 Year
Mendis Dennis-Vincent Mendis Dennis-Vincent 1 Year
Blondel Walker Fitzgerald Percy 1 Year

Credit Committee

Retiring Nominated Term in
Office
Constance Roberts Perkins Lorna Calder 2 Years
Novlette Arthurs Novlette Arthurs 2 Years
Dion Murphy Nedrick Dion Murphy Nedrick 1 Year
Mureen Young Sewell Mureen Young-Sewell 1 Year
Camille Williams Camille Williams 1 Year

Co-operatively Yours

' J i

4 m-’?;'f/"r-'f okt P fee=
Constance Roberts Perkins
Chairperson
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. )

Doreen Cushnie Renee Collins
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HIGHLIGHTS - 44TH ANNUAL

GENERAL MEETING

© 0

he 44th Annual General Meeting of the ]I;A?nhattar'l o, Klrﬁgston ;51 Thls_ s
NAJ & Health Services Co-operative rid meeting was well attended. Prizes were

Credit Union Limited was held on Saturday, g e hopaticinated in pop

June 26. 2022 at the office of the Jamaica quiz about the Credit Union and its services.

Co-operative Credit Union League on EE R rlhi shlightsihel oy,

Miss Yvonne Bernard, stenographer

Mrs. Sheryl Brown
for the AGM takes notes on the

from DCFS conducts

day’s activities. Members of the technical team assist in the the elections.

smooth flowing of meeting.

NAJ & Health Services CCU Presi-
dent, Mrs. Janett Coore-Farr discusses
Mr. Egon Fagon (standing), member of the Nominating Committee, matters from the Board of Directors’
makes his point on a matter raised in the Board of Directors’ Report. Report put forward by members.
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44TH ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING HIGHLIGHTS

The members in attendance as well as those on the Zoom platform,
raise their hands as an indication of agreement to the moving of the Mr. Barrington Hibbert, chairperson of the
maximum liability. Supervisory Committee presents his
report.

IEALY

L T

Dr. Hilary Jones accepts her prize from Miss Doreen Cushnie

after she correctly answers a question during the quiz session. Mr. Ashani Thomas of the Maeting Depart-
ment, informed the members of the benefits of
being apart of the Credit Union.

m— .
Miss Vera Lindo of the Credit Union League makes a point. Mr. Derrick Tulloch and Mrs. Janett Coore-
Farr voted in agreement with the resolution.
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JAMAICA CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION
LEAGUE LIMITED

A\

he Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union

League’s 80th Annual General Meeting
was held at the Credit Union House’s Sullivan
Hall on Saturday, June 5, 2021. One hundred
persons comprised credit union delegates, al-
ternate delegates, JCCUL Group Board mem-
bers, JCCUL Group staff, and observers were
in attendance on the Zoom platform. Sixteen
persons attended in person. These include the
Registrar, some JCCUL Board members, the
Supervisory and Nominating Committee
Chairpersons, and JCCUL Group staff.

Delegates from 25 Credit Unions attended the
80th annual general meeting. The following
activities took place:

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
President Mr. Lambert Johnson chaired the
meeting. He welcomed the participants and

then gave a summary of the Board report for
the year 2020.

The following reports were presented: Board
of Director’s Report, Treasurer’s Report,
Auditor’s Report, Fixing of Maximum Liabil-
ity, Supervisory Committee Report, Nominat-
ing Committee Report, Resolutions, and the
Credit Union of the Year Awards.

Highlights of JACCUL
80th Annual General Meeting

RESOLUTIONS

Five congratulatory resolutions were passed
at the meeting as follows:

1.

Ambassador Aloun Ndombet-Assamba,
COK Sodality Co-operative Credit
Union —Congratulations on Retirement.
Hope Mowatt, Grace Co-operative
Credit Union - Congratulations on
Retirement.

C&W/J Co-operative Credit Union —
60th Anniversary Congratulations.
Manchester Co-operative Credit Union
— 70th Anniversary Congratulations.
Portland Co-operative Credit Union —
50th Anniversary Congratulations.

RULE CHANGES

1. Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League
Ltd. - Special Resolution to amend Rules 23,
25, 30, and 86 to allow for virtual-only and
hybrid meetings, was passed.

2. Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League
Ltd. — Resolution to amend Rule 15 regarding
flexibility to amend liquidity reserves require-
ment, was passed.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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JCCUL AGM HIGHLIGHTS

LEAGUE BOARD

Following the AGM, the executive was
elected to serve on the League Board for the
2021-2022 year. They are:

Lambert Johnson - President

Andrea Messam - 1st Vice President
O’Neil Grant - 2nd Vice President
Norris Gilbert - Treasurer

Patrick Smith - Assistant Treasurer
Jerry Hamilton - Secretary

Brenda Cuthbert - Assistant Secretary
Winston Fletcher

® 6 6 6 6 o+ 0 o

The other directors are:

¢ Immediate Past President Michael
Anglin

Martin Blackwood

Alexander Bourne

Bornette Donaldson

Ryan Muir

Hector Stephenson

Anthony McLaughlin

® 6 6 o o o
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YOUR CREDIT UNION GIVES YOU A BETTER WAY TO BORROW

Life Can Be Unpredictable...
DID YOU KNOW that your Credit Union...

INSURES YOUR LOANS AND SAVINGS?

Wihzn youl take @ loan fram your
Cregit Limon, & & sale, sequin
paaranieds gread rales and nchudes
the piided protection of Life Savings
and Loan Prolection Insurangs &l
& no exira cost!

LOAN PROTECTION INSURANCE

Our Loan Profeciion Inswrancs iz a safety nel
for you ouwr mambars. it pays the oulstanding
balance on your loan [F you dig of becoma
totally or permanently disable, thereby providing

LIFE SAVINGS INSURANCE

Az an added benefit 16 you and at no extra cost,
we also top up the legacy you leave your loved
ones upon your death. LHe Savings Insurance
provides you wilh Insurance thal increasas your

pezce of mind for the member, the member's
family and the co-makers against the burden
al any unpakd koans,

savings in the Credit Union

We Rnow we won'! ke away e padn, B JF wily
certainly help the Nnencial siradn — fust for once,

This bawefit is avaiable fo all our members peace of mimf thal does pod come & @ irice
under the age of 70,
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NAJ & HEALTH SERVICES
CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION

"Hedping you to reolize your drooms”

CEEED owvivess
Adcireay 8 Tresennass Pk Rosd. Kingyion &
Bl B} BI-00MD. 00 KHG-6

L PO Do

ACCESS 10 TIMES
YOUR SHARE AMOUNT

| ow Low Interest Rates!!

¥
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CASH BACK FOR LOAN REFERRALS

MOTOR VEHICLE
LOAN SPECIAL

876-832-1195
876-818-0428

Interest Rate : 6.5% - 7.35%
Year : 2013 - NEW

Terms : 4 - 10 years to repay
Fees slashed

GIT THAT DRLAM CAR OR JUST A CAR
FOR (HRISTMAS
FROM NOW TIL MNURRY 31 200

L S S 4

NAJ & HEALTH SERVICES
CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION

Wiy g PE PR RS s i e

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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NAJ & HEALTH SERVICES
CO-OPERATIVE CREDIT UNION

“Helping you 10 realize your dreams”

INTRODUCING OUR ALL NEW

PARTNER ~_

E——

REWARD
FROM
15-85%

OF HAND

*Payment frequency is weekly, monthiy or forfmightly only
Payments mus! be made before the agreed day ad'g;
weekfortnightly/monthily in order 1o avoid penallies.

CELLD) ersitsces
Address: & Trevennion Park Road, Kingsion 5
Tul; (B806) G20-0000; 906-1235-6
Ermmil najp@E@najhsceucom
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PAY DAY LOANS ARE NOW

AVAILABLE TO GET YOU GOING J( '(- [ H ( [ ./( ..h.,r ( HF“

T B \'{'I""L I! "] "'d"i
$50,000 - $100,000 YOUR SHARE AMOUNT

REPLACEMENT PERIOD 6 MONTHS ON THE REDUCING BALANCI
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“Dont Dream

Preducld It HAVE It”
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The Prayer of
St. Francis of Assissi

Lord, make me an instrument of thy peace
Where there is hatred, let me show love
Where there is injury, pardon
Where there is doubt, faith
Where there is despair, hope
Where there is darkness, light
And where there is sadness, joy

O Divine Master, grant that | may not so much seek
To be consoled as to console
To be understood, as to understand
To be loved as to love
For it is in giving that we receive
It is pardoning that we are pardoned
And it is in dying that we are born to eternal life.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
Helping You to Realize Your Dreams
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l\q National Anthem

Eternal Father, bless our Land
Guide us with Thy mighty hand
Keep us free from evil powers
Be our light through countless hours
To our leaders, Great Defender
Grant true wisdom from above
Justice, truth be ours forever
Jamaica, Land we love.

Chorus:
Jamaica, Jamaica
Jamaica, Land we love

Teach us true respect for all
Stir response to duty’s call
Strengthen us, the weak to cherish
Give us vision, lest we perish
Knowledge send us, Heavenly Father
Grant true wisdom from above
Justice, truth be ours forever
Jamaica. Land we love.

NAJ & Health Services Co-operative Credit Union Ltd.
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l\q Notes
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NAJ & Health Service:s
Co-operative Credit Union Limited
6 Trevennion Park Road, Kingston 5
Tel: (876) 929-0070





